
CITY COUNCIL MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of Caribou will hold a Regular City Council Meeting 
on Monday, March 27, 2023, in the Council Chambers located at 25 High Street, 6:00 pm. 
 
THE MEETING WILL BE BROADCAST ON CABLE CHANNELS 8 & 1301 AND THE CITY’S YOUTUBE CHANNEL.  
 
1. Roll Call 
2. Invocation/Inspirational Thought  Ron Rosser 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Public Forum (PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK PRIOR TO 4:30PM ON THE MEETING DATE WILL 

BE SHARED WITH THE COUNCIL DURING PUBLIC FORUM. Email dbrissette@cariboumaine.org) 
5. Minutes             Pages 

a. Regular City Council meeting – February 27, 2023      02-05 
6. Bid Openings, Awards, and Appointments 

a. Recognition of 2023 CHS Principal’s Award: Jadynn Blackstone Eye    06 
7. Public Hearings and Possible Action Items 

a. Public Hearing on 2023 Municipal Budget       07 
8. Reports by Staff and Committees 

a. February Financials – Finance Director        08-24 
b. Tax Acquired property list to go out to bid – Finance Director     25-26 
c. Manager’s Report          27-28 

9. New Business, Ordinances and Resolutions 
a. Approval for the June 13, 2023 RSU#39 Budget Validation Elections    29 
b. Appointments to the Zoning Board of Appeals       30 
c. Appointments to the Caribou Congregate Housing Development Corporation   31-32 
d. 2023 Maine DOT Municipal Partnership Agreement for paving on Route 161B & Route 164 33-38 
e. Proposed contract with Artifex for architectural services for new police station   39-75 
f. Letter from the Business Investment Group regarding Land Bank activities   76-77 
g. City Council discussion and possible action on the 2023 Municipal Budget   78,124 

i. Expense Budget         79-118 
ii. Capital Budget         119 
iii. Revenue Budget         120-123 

10. Old Business 
11. Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 
12. Next Regular Meetings: April 10 & 24 
13. Executive Session(s) (May be called to discuss matters identified under MRSA, Title 1, §405.6)       
14. Adjournment 
If you are planning to attend this Public Meeting and due to a disability, need assistance in understanding or 
participating in the meeting, please notify the City Clerk ten or more hours in advance and we will, within reason, 
provide what assistance may be required. 
 
Certificate of Mailing/Posting 
The undersigned duly appointed City official for the municipality of Caribou City hereby certifies that a copy of the 
foregoing Notice and Agenda was posted at City Offices and on-line in accordance with City noticing procedures.      
 

 
BY: ____________________________________ Danielle Brissette, City Clerk 

1

mailto:dbrissette@cariboumaine.org


February 27, 2023 

23-05 Pg. 1 

Council Agenda Item #1:  Roll Call 

The Caribou City Council held a City Council meeting, Monday, February 27, 2023, in the 

Council Chambers with the following members present:  Mayor Smith, Deputy Mayor Boma, 

Councilors Bagley, Morrill, Theriault, and Willey.  Councilor Goughan was present via Zoom.  

Manager Thompson was present at the meeting.  

Department Managers Carl Grant (Finance Director), Peter Baldwin (Library Director), and 

Scott Susi (Fire Chief) were present for the meeting.  

Melissa Lizotte of the Aroostook Republican covered the meeting, and it was broadcasted via 

Spectrum and YouTube.  

Council Agenda Item #2:  Invocation / Inspirational Thought  

Mayor Smith read an invocation.  

Council Agenda Item #3:  Pledge of Allegiance 

Mayor Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

Council Agenda Item #4:  Public Input 

There were no comments made by the public.  

Council Agenda Item #5:  Minutes 

a.  Regular City Council meeting – January 23, 2023 

Motion made by Councilor Morrill, seconded by Deputy Mayor Boma to accept the minutes as 

presented for the January 23, 2023 meeting.  

Roll Call Vote:  D. Bagley – Yes, C. Boma – Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, J. Morrill – Yes, J. Theriault 

– Yes, L. Willey – Yes, J. Smith – Yes.  (So voted) 

Council Agenda Item #6:  Bid Openings, Awards, and Appointments 

a.  Bid award to remove Fire Department pellet boiler and air handler. 

Mayor Smith explained that they have received bids from Staples Construction for $21,445 and a 

bid from Beaupre’s Construction LLC in the amount of $20,810.  

Motion made by Councilor Morrill to accept the bid made by Staples Construction for $21,445.  

Motion failed for lack of a second.  

Council had a brief discussion regarding the bid, regarding if it was a salvage and resell or 

disposal.  They also discussed the fact that both companies are local.   

Motion made by Councilor Bagley to refer to the Building Committee for further review.   

Motion failed for lack of a second.   

2



February 27, 2023 

23-05 Pg. 2 

Council discussed that the idea is to remove and haul away and that is not an easy task as the silo 

is ¾ full of old pellets that are no longer any good and will need to be disposed of.   

Councilor Theriault seconded Councilor Morrill’s motion.  

Motion made by Councilor Morrill, seconded by Councilor Theriault to accept the bid from 

Staples Construction in the amount of $21,445.  

Roll Call Vote:  D. Bagley – Yes, C. Boma – Yes, R.M. Goughan – No, J. Morrill – Yes, J. Theriault 

– Yes, L. Willey – Yes, J. Smith – Yes.  (So voted) 

Council Agenda Item #7:  Public Hearings and Possible Action Items 

There were no items scheduled for discussion.   

Council Agenda Item #8:  Reports by Staff and Committees 

a.  January Financials – Finance Director 

Carl Grant (Finance Director) reviewed the January 2023 financial report.  

Mayor Smith asked if the report reflects all the revenue payments.  

Mr. Grant stated that the report does reflect the payments. 

Councilor Morrill asked how Mr. Grant feels that the city stands so far. 

Mr. Grant explained that it is too early to tell.  

Councilor Morrill asked if they are looking at the investment portfolio and thinking about 

reinvesting the funds.  

Mr. Grant explained that he is currently watching the rates and is planning on reinvesting with a 

higher interest rate.   

Motion made by Councilor Morrill, seconded by Councilor Willey to accept the January 2023 

financial report as presented.  

Roll Call Vote:  D. Bagley – Yes, C. Boma – Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, J. Morrill – Yes, J. Theriault 

– Yes, L. Willey – Yes, J. Smith – Yes.  (So voted) 

b.  Manager’s Report 

Manager Thompson reviewed the Manager’s report dated February 27, 2023. 

c.  Committee Reports 

 i.  Broadband Committee 

Councilor Bagley explained that the Broadband Committee met on the 20th and discussed goals 

and what the city obligation is and how the city can help the best.  He explained that there is a 

potential for a financial risk and would take many years before seeing a return on the investment.   

3



February 27, 2023 

23-05 Pg. 3 

In the past they have looked at three options, Spectrum, CUD and to do nothing.   

The committee would like to engage with Spectrum for the best and final offer.  They’re also 

going to be meeting with a member of the CUD board on March 7th at 8:30 to discuss the topic.   

Councilor Morrill explained that he feels like this is redundant and repetitive.  He explained that 

they have received public input and had many discussions.  He believed that the council had 

decided to wait for more discussion until funding is available.   

Councilor Willey explained that the Mayor has the right to create and appoint committees.   

 ii.  Municipal Buildings Committee 

Councilor Morrill explained that they met to address the deferred maintenance.  The committee 

toured the Nylander, Library and Fire station to discuss what needs to be done to maintain the 

assets.  He suggested the possibility of having a maintenance man who could help with the 

upkeep of the buildings and help to facilitate repairs.   

Deputy Mayor Boma agreed that it is a good idea to have a maintenance person.   

Councilor Willey explained that the maintenance is important and that if things are not done then 

the buildings would not be efficient.   

Council Agenda Item #9:  New Business, Ordinances and Resolutions 

a. 2023 Municipal Budget – Overview of 2023 Municipal Budget  

b.  2023 Municipal Budget – Presentation of Budgets (Department 11, 12, 17, 18, 38, 61, 65, 75) 

Manager Penny Thompson reviewed department 11, 12, 17, 18, 38, 61, 65, and 75.   

Peter Baldwin (Library Director) explained that for Department 12- Nylander Museum there has 

been a part time employee working 10 hours per week cataloging items that the museum houses.  

The new budget reflects an employee plus him.   

c.  City Council feedback or questions on the 2023 Municipal expense budget 

Councilor Bagley suggested to add all the requests for contributions to the budget to see what it 

looks like.   

Council Agenda Item #10:  Old Business 

a.  Discussion of Ordinance 01, 2023, Series Establishing the Caribou Development Committee 

Mayor Smith explained that there will be a public hearing at the next meeting to discuss 

Ordinance No. 1.   

Councilor Bagley explained his suggested edits to Ordinance 01, 2023 Series Establishing the 

Caribou Development Committee.  He said that he thought that it was important to lay out the 

specific scope of the committee as well as show how it would work with other committees.   

4



February 27, 2023 

23-05 Pg. 4 

Motion made by Councilor Bagley, seconded by Councilor Morrill to adopt the revisions as 

printed in this week’s packet to take to the public hearing next time.   

Roll Call Vote:  D. Bagley – Yes, C. Boma – Yes, R.M. Goughan – No, J. Morrill – Yes, J. Theriault 

– Yes, L. Willey – Yes, J. Smith – Yes.  (So voted) 

b. 2022 Priorities and Goals discussion 

Mayor Smith explained that this was an exercise to give staff and the Council some information 

on what the priorities are going forward so that everyone can work towards the goals.   

Council Agenda Item #11:  Reports and Discussion by Mayor and Council Members 

Councilor Bagley explained that he has attended the CEGC meetings and that they are 

considering a loan application for a new event and wedding company called Enchanting Events.  

It would be a significant loan that would bring a nice new business to the area.   

Councilor Bagley also gave a shout out to the Planning Board for the great job that they are 

doing while working on the Comprehensive Plan with the outreach and all the work they have 

done.   

Mayor Smith explained that there are a couple of Capital Budget meetings coming up.  He also 

reminded about the Snowbowl that is happening this weekend and gave a shoutout to the 

businesses that spearheaded the event.   

Council Agenda Item #12:  Next Regular Meetings:  March 13 & 27, Joint meeting with 

Planning Board March 14 

Council Agenda Item #13:  Executive Session(s) (May be called to discuss matters identified 

under MRSA 1, §405.6)  

Council did not enter into executive session.  

Council Agenda Item #14:  Adjournment 

Motion made by Councilor Morrill, seconded by Deputy Mayor Boma to adjourn the meeting at 

7:45 p.m. 

Roll Call Vote:  D. Bagley – Yes, C. Boma – Yes, R.M. Goughan – Yes, J. Morrill – Yes, J. Theriault 

– Yes, L. Willey – Yes, J. Smith – Yes.  (So voted) 

 

Danielle Brissette, secretary 

5



 
 CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 

To:   Mayor and City Council Members 
From:   Penny Thompson, City Manager 
Date:   March 27, 2023 
Re:   Certificates of Recognition for Caribou High School Principal’s Award recipient  
  

Jadynn Blackstone Eye of Caribou, a senior at Caribou High School, has been selected to receive 
the 2023 Principal's Award.  The award, sponsored by the Maine Principals' Association, is given 
in recognition of a high school senior's academic achievement and citizenship. 
 
The Principal's Award is presented in more than 100 Maine public and private high schools by 
member principals of the MPA, the professional association which represents Maine's school 
administrators. 
 
Here with the City Council tonight is 2023 CHS Principal’s Award recipient Jadynn Blackstone Eye. 
 
We are also joined by Caribou High School Assistant Principal Ben Goodwin. CHS Principal Jamie 
Selfridge is out of town and could not attend tonight’s meeting. 
 
 

Suggestion Action: 

Present certificates to student and assistant principal 

6



CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  
25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  
MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  
FROM:  Penny Thompson, City Manager  
DATE:  March 27, 2023 
RE:  2023 Municipal Expense Budget 
 
 

Per the City Charter, Section 5.06 Budget 

The budget process shall be divided into three processes: Expense Budget, Capital Expense Budget and Income Budget. 

Tonight the public hearing on all sections of the 2023 Municipal Budget will be held.  

 

Complete City Budget 

On or before May 31: The City Manager will finalize the complete City Budget for the current year including all three 
elements: expense, capital expense, and income. The City Council has the opportunity to reduce the expense or capital 
expense budget if needed based on the current income budget but cannot increase the expense or capital expense 
budget. 
 
Set the Rate of Taxation 
The City Council will set the rate of taxation for the City based on the approved budgets of the City, County and RSU 39 
on or before the 30th of June each year. 
 
Suggested action: 
 
Open the public hearing and take comments from the public and City Council members.  
 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



City Manager's Report
March 27, 2023

 

Economic Projects

   

River Front - Powerplants Waiting to hear about Brownfields application.

Broadband Initiative No new updates

CDBG No new updates

Ogren Dump Solar Project No new updates

Events and Marketing City Wide Yard Sale May 20 & 21.

Landbank On tonight's agenda

Chapter 13 Rewrite No new updates

Federal American Rescue Plan Act No new updates

Blight Cleanup No new updates

Birdseye Cleanup No new updates

60 Access Highway No new updates

River Front - Master Plan Riverfront committee requesting funds from the Caribou City Council for a master plan.

Façade Improvement Program The façade grant program deadline was 3/15. The committee will meet on 3/28. Results will on the April 10 agenda.

Aldrich ATV/Snowmobile Storage No new updates

Jarosz Storage - Limestone St No new updates

Business Outreach No new updates 27



Other Administrative Projects

Tax Acquired Property Policy No new updates

Nylander No new updates

Fire Structural Work No new updates

Fire Station Renovations No new updates

Police Station On tonight's agenda

River Road No new updates

Investment Policy No new updates

Trailer Park Closure No new updates

Cable Franchise Renewal No new updates

Airport No new updates

Personnel Policy No new updates

New LED Street lights No new updates

Comp Plan Update Thursday there was a work session Housing.

COVID-19 Status No new updates

15 Prospect Street No new updates

Water Street Fire No new updates

Age-Friendly Efforts No new updates

Personnel Changes The City of Caribou has multiple open positions. See the website for details.

Other Updates
Staff working on many projects. 

28



 
 

 
CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  
FROM:  Danielle Brissette  
RE:   RSU #39 Budget Validation Elections 
DATE:  March 21, 2023 
 

 
 

The Clerk’s Office is preparing for the June 13, 2023 RSU #39 Budget Validation Elections and 
is requesting Council approval for the following.  

 1.  Approval of and 8:00 a.m. opening Time for June 13, 2023 Election 

 2.  Appointment of Danielle Brissette as Election Warden, and Kalen Hill as Deputy 
Warden for the June 13, 2023 Election  

 

Recommended Motion: 

Move to set the start time as 8:00 a.m. and to appoint Danielle Brissette as Election Warden, and 
Kalen Hill as Deputy Warden for the June 13, 2023 Election. 

29



 
 

 
CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  

25 HIGH STREET  
CARIBOU, ME. 04736  

MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  
FROM:  Danielle Brissette  
RE:   Zoning Board of Appeals 
DATE:  March 21, 2023 
 

 
 

 

The Clerk’s office has received applications from both George Howe and Lewis Cousins.   

Both candidates have served on the board before and are applying to be reelected for terms 
ending 12/31/2025.   

 

 

 

 

Suggested Action: 

Make a motion to appoint both George Howe and Lewis Cousins to the Zoning board of Appeals 
for a term ending 12/31/2025. 

 

 

30



  

 
 
MEMO 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM:   Lisa Plourde, Housing Director 
Date:       March 23, 2023 
RE:       Caribou Congregate Housing Development Corp., Appoint Members 
 
 
 
According to the Caribou Congregate Housing Development Corporation’s By-Laws, Article III,  
Section 1: Number and Composition:   

“two (2) directors shall be selected by the City Council of Caribou, which two directors may not 
be members of said City Council.  Notice of such selection shall be provided to the Clerk of the 
corporation by the first day of April of each year by the said City Council.” 

 
Currently, the two members that fill the seats on behalf of the City of Caribou are Kenneth Murchison, 
Code Enforcement Officer and Lisa Plourde, Housing Director; per the bylaws their term expires in 
March. 
 
It is being requested that the City Council to appoint Danielle Brissette, City Clerk and to reappoint  
Lisa Plourde, Housing Director to the Caribou Housing Development Corporation Board of Directors 
 
 

   25 High Street 
              Caribou, ME  04736 

                                                Telephone:  (207) 493-4234 
                                Fax (207) 376-0178 

                   www.caribouhousing.org 

                                                                                                                                        
 

31

http://www.caribouhousing.org/


32



CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  
25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  
MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  
FROM:  Penny Thompson, City Manager  
DATE:  March 27, 2023 
RE:  MaineDOT Municipal Partnership Agreement Calendar Year 

2023 for a section of Route 161B and Route 164 
 
 

 
The City has received confirmation that the State of Maine will do a Municipal Partnership Agreement with the 
City on a section of Route 161B and Route 164. Our Code Enforcement Officer Ken Murchison has provided a 
map of the areas covered on the next page. 
 
The agreement is on the following pages. 
 
Public Works Director David Ouellette can answer any questions. 
 
 
Suggested action: 
 
If the agreement is satisfactory, please “make a motion to authorize City Manager Penny Thompson to execute 
the agreement with the MaineDOT for the Calendar Year 2023 Municipal Partnership Agreement for a section 
of  Route 161B and Route 164 in Caribou. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



 

34



Rev. 12.2022 

STATE OF MAINE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 

25033.17 

REGARDING  

Route 161B & 164 Paving CARIBOU 

This Cooperative Agreement (AGREEMENT) is entered into by and between the MAINE 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (“MaineDOT”), an agency of state government with its 
principal administrative offices located on Child Street, Augusta, Maine, and the CITY OF  
CARIBOU (“MUNICIPALITY”), a municipality in the State of Maine with offices located at 25 High 
Street, Caribou, ME 04736.  

WHEREAS, 
CARIBOU shall perform Route 161B & 164 Paving (the “Project”).  Route 161 will be paved 
from Main Street to Prospect Street and Route 164 will be paved from Summer Street to the Compact 
Urban Line.  CARIBOU estimates this project at $360,000 

CITY OF  CARIBOU SHALL: 

1. Procure all contracts for and oversee the Project on Route 161B & 164 Paving for the Work 
outlined above.

2. Cause such Work to be performed in accordance with a design by an engineer licensed in the 
State of Maine. The Licensed Engineer shall provide a certification to the Municipality and to 
MaineDOT that, in his/her professional opinion, the Project as designed will provide a smooth 
ride, not reduce the safety, mobility or structural quality of the state [state aid] road. All design 
documents must be stamped and signed in accordance with this provision by the Professional 
Engineer.

3. Agree to secure all necessary Federal, State and Local permits necessary to complete the work. 
CARIBOU also agrees to secure any needed property rights in accordance with all applicable 
State and Federal Law.

4. Agrees that any exceptions to State Design Standards shall be documented as part of this 
process. This documentation shall compare the new design to the existing conditions for each of 
the exceptions to current design standards. Any such exceptions shall be displayed on the cover 
sheet for the Project plans with the signature and PE stamp of the engineer responsible for the 
design of the Project.

Internal Use Only 
TEDOCS #: 

CTM #: 
CSN #: 

Vendor #: VC1000012352

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8438242B-5C94-4365-A2AF-849A572129B9

35



Rev. 12.2022 

5. Be responsible, within the Project limits, for the following:

a. Ensuring that the safety of the corridor and the life of the resulting structural and design
elements are equal to or better than existing conditions and design;

b. Ensuring that the structures, roadways and/or design features affected by the Project
work shall, at a minimum, be of improved quality in terms of materials and utility;

c. Ensuring that the Project does not introduce safety hazards;

d. Ensuring that the Project retains the same level of mobility or improves mobility of
travel within the corridor, unless approved traffic calming measures are proposed;

e. Ensuring that the Project does not decrease the life expectancy of this component of
Maine’s transportation system; and,

f. Ensuring that the Project meets the current standards of Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990 (ADA) design requirements.

6. Provide certification through their Engineer to MaineDOT that the Project is complete and was
constructed as designed.

7. Ensure that construction shall commence within EIGHTEEN (18) months and shall be certified
complete within THIRTY-SIX (36) months of execution of this agreement.  CARIBOU may
forfeit the unpaid balance of this grant if these deadlines are not met or they can not
demonstrate earnest and good faith efforts to meet them.

8. Be responsible for or cause its contractors to be responsible for all damage to public or private
property of any kind resulting from any act, omission, neglect or misconduct of CARIBOU or
its contractors, including damage to vehicles passing through the Project limits.

9. Bear all risk of loss relating to the Project and the Work regardless of cause.

MAINEDOT SHALL: 

10. Provide a maximum $180,000 in State funds supporting the Work stated
above. Reimbursement will be made by the Department at a minimum of 1/3 project
completion upon receipt of supporting cost documentation from the Municipality. Payments
will be made per Appendix A attached. The Department’s Region Engineer shall review the
costs and certify their eligibility prior to reimbursement of Municipal Partnership Initiative
Funds. Payment by MaineDOT Municipal Partnership Initiative funds shall not exceed
$180,000 or 50% of the actual costs incurred and paid by the Municipality.

11. This project has been approved for Calendar Year 2023.  If the Municipality commences
construction of the project as outlined above prior to January 1, 2023, the Municipality assumes
the risk and responsibility for costs incurred, in the event that funding levels fall below
MaineDOT projections. If this occurs, the Municipality will not receive reimbursement from
MaineDOT.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8438242B-5C94-4365-A2AF-849A572129B9

36



Rev. 12.2022 

The City of CARIBOU and MaineDOT agree to function within all applicable laws, statutes, 
regulations, and AGREEMENT provisions; avoid hindering each other’s performance; fulfill all 
obligations diligently; and cooperate in achievement of the intent of this AGREEMENT. 

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT effective on the day 
and date last signed. 

CITY OF  CARIBOU 

Dated: _________________ By: __________________________________ 
Penny Thompson 
City Manager  

STATE OF MAINE        
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Dated: _________________ By: __________________________________ 
Kyle Hall 
Director, Maintenance and Operations 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8438242B-5C94-4365-A2AF-849A572129B9

37



Rev. 12.2022 

APPENDIX A 

PROJECT SCOPE AND COST SHARING 
MAINE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Municipal Partnership Initiative Project  

CARIBOU 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS TO: Route 161B & 164

STATE PROJECT IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 25033.17

FUNDED CONSTRUCTION YEAR 2023  

Project Scope: Route 161B & 164 Paving  
Funding Outline: The Total Project Estimated Cost is $360,000 and the Parties agree to share costs 
through all stages of the Project under the terms outlined below.   

REIMBURSEMENT SCHEDULE: 

MaineDOT prefers the municipality invoice upon completion the project. The Department will, 
however, accept monthly invoices after 1/3 project completion with a maximum invoice submittal not 
to exceed 3 invoices.  

DESIGN EXCEPTIONS REQUIRED: __ YES X NO 

Work Element Municipal Share State Share Total Cost 
% $ % $ $ 

Agreement Cost Share 50% $180,000.00 50% $180,000.00 $360,000.00 
Estimated Additional 
Municipal Funds 

$0.00 

Maximum State Share 
Amount 

$180,000.00 

Total Project Estimated 
Costs 

$180,000.00 $180,000.00 $360,000.00 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8438242B-5C94-4365-A2AF-849A572129B9

38



CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  
25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  
MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  
FROM:  Penny Thompson, City Manager  
DATE:  March 27, 2023 
RE:  Proposed contract with Artifex (new police station) 
 

 
Voters in Caribou voted in favor of moving forward with a plan to construct a police station at a cost not to 
exceed $10,000,000 in June 2023. The City was successful in having a Congressionally Directed Spending 
request approved in the amount of $2,500,000 from Senator Susan Collins. 
 
To proceed with accessing the CDS funding and to move forward with securing financing for the facility, 
Caribou needs to enter into a contract with a firm to provide architectural and engineering services for the 
project. 
 
The five phases are broken down in the proposal for a total of $629,000 (page 7 of the proposal letter) 
 
I have also attached information from the State of Maine, Bureau of General Services, Division of Planning, 
Design and Construction. Public Safety buildings fall under a “B Rate” (page 2 of that document). The project 
falls into the category of projects with a construction cost of $4,000,000 to $14,999,999 (page 4 of that 
document). For a B Rate structure in that construction cost category, the recommended fee schedule is 7.0% to 
7.7%. On a $10,000,000 project, that would give a fee range of $700,000 to $770,000.  
 
Suggested action: 
 
If the contract is satisfactory, please “make a motion to authorize City Manager Penny Thompson to execute the 
agreement with Artifex for the Caribou Police Station project in Caribou”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



State of Maine 
Bureau of General Services 

Division of Planning, Design & Construction 
 

 

BGS Policy AE Fees 02 November 2020 (4) Page 1 of 4
  

 
BGS Policy 
Determining Design Fees for Architectural/Engineering Agreements 

 
This policy shall be followed on all public improvement projects which, by law, must be 

submitted to the Bureau of General Services (BGS) for review and for approval of the selection 
of Architectural and Engineering (A/E) and Landscape Architectural services1. 

 
 

Purpose 
There are two methods for determining design fees.  Public improvement projects which 

will have a total fee amount under $25,000 should determine design fees by documenting 
specific tasks with an associated fee for each task.  The objective of this policy is to describe the 
considerations for determining Architectural and Engineering design fees for Design-Bid-Build 
projects over $25,000 in total fee amount when the sum-of-fees-for-specific-tasks methodology 
is not used. 
 

 
Definitions 

For the purpose of this policy, the following terms have the following meanings: 
 
Owner.  The contracting state agency, Community College, Maine Maritime Academy, 

Maine Judicial Branch, school administrative unit or other entity. 
 
Consultant.  The firm providing architectural/engineering services to the Owner. 
 
Bureau or BGS.  The Bureau of General Services; the approval authority. 
 
Comprehensive Architectural/Engineering Projects.  Public Improvement design and 

construction projects which require three or more distinct architectural and engineering design 
disciplines working in a coordinated way to complete the project. 

 
Construction cost.  For the purposes of this policy sheet, the budgeted or estimated value 

of the construction contract.  Fees for projects which have a combination of new construction 
and renovation should be calculated on pro-rated basis. 

 
Renovation cost modifier.  The rate added to the corresponding new construction cost rate 

to determine the overall fee rate. 
 
A rate.  The reference A/E fee rate on projects of ordinary complexity, shown on Table 1 

as a percentage of the budgeted or estimated construction contract value.  Examples are garages; 
pole barns; aircraft hangers; parking structures; warehouses; enclosures or structures housing 
utilities; simple office buildings; et cetera. 

 
 

1 The reference in statute is Title 5, Chapter 153, Section 1742, subsection 6. 

72



State of Maine 
Bureau of General Services 

Division of Planning, Design & Construction 
 

 

BGS Policy AE Fees 02 November 2020 (4) Page 2 of 4
  

B rate.  The reference A/E fee rate on projects of moderate complexity, shown on Table 1 
as a percentage of the budgeted or estimated construction contract value.  Examples are office 
buildings with unusual program requirements; educational facilities including an ordinary mix of 
classrooms, auditoriums, cafeterias, and office space; dormitories; athletic facilities; public 
safety, correctional, judicial, or other facilities with a limited amount of segregated public and 
secure spaces; armories, readiness centers and similar military facilities; simple medical 
facilities; et cetera. 

 
C rate.  The reference A/E fee rate on projects of extraordinary complexity, shown on 

Table 1 as a percentage of the budgeted or estimated construction contract value.  Examples are 
correctional or judicial facilities with multiple separate spaces for security, administrative, 
public, and operational functions; laboratories with various specialized power and HVAC 
requirements; medical facilities with several interrelated and segregated functions; data centers; 
et cetera. 

 
 

Method 
One method for developing A/E fees is to describe each task in each phase of the work, 

all of the personnel needed to complete the services, the time needed for each task, and the 
associated fee.  This method is used in single-source procurement when the total fee is under 
$25,000, however, it is not limited to that procurement.  Projects which have a limited number of 
disciplines involved, or only one discipline, would use this method. 

 
Another method for developing A/E fees is to utilize the attached Table 1 Recommended 

Fee Schedule for Architectural/Engineering Projects.  The Fee Schedule framework establishes a 
reference from which to negotiate the fee by identifying a range of acceptable rates in the form 
of a percentage of the estimated construction cost.  Projects which have coordinated 
Architectural and Engineering disciplines involved would use this method. 

 
Irrespective of the basis of the fee calculation, the Owner shall create a written 

justification for the fee amount by documenting the fee negotiation and the rationale for the 
particular fee amount. 

 
The fee recorded on the agreement will show as a stipulated sum for the given scope of 

services, or an hourly rates, not-to-exceed amount, or as mixed fees, not-to-exceed amount when 
both stipulated sum and hourly rates, not-to-exceed are used. 

 
 

Protocol 
The Owner shall complete each of the following steps, in the order shown, so as to 

document a fair fee as a component of an agreement between the Owner and Consultant which is 
approvable by BGS or other approval authority. 

 
1. Select Consultant.  Use the BGS Prequalified Professionals List (select one firm), or a 

Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process (advertise, interview, then rank evaluated firms in 
order).  For the RFQ process, select the highest-ranked firm. 

73



State of Maine 
Bureau of General Services 

Division of Planning, Design & Construction 
 

 

BGS Policy AE Fees 02 November 2020 (4) Page 3 of 4
  

 
2. Solicit proposal from Consultant.  Provide the written project description, schedule, 

scope of services and any other relevant information to the selected Consultant.  Request a 
detailed proposal in response. 

 
3. Negotiate fee.  Use the table below and the project parameters to negotiate the fee 

amount and terms of the agreement.  Be prepared to document the rationale for the particular fee 
amount. 

 
4. Draft agreement.  Send a draft of the agreement to all parties and BGS or the approval 

authority, if not BGS, which will pre-approve the draft agreement. 
 
5. Approve agreement.  Distribute the agreement to be signed by Consultant, Owner, and 

finally by BGS or the approval authority, if not BGS.  No work shall commence until the 
agreement is approved by BGS or the approval authority. 
  

74



State of Maine 
Bureau of General Services 

Division of Planning, Design & Construction 
 

 

BGS Policy AE Fees 02 November 2020 (4) Page 4 of 4
  

TABLE 1 
RECOMMENDED FEE SCHEDULE FOR ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING PROJECTS 

 

Construction Cost A rate B rate C rate 

  Negotiate fee amount based on hourly rates 
or a percentage of construction cost  

up to $249,999 10.0 to 8.5% 11.0 to 9.5 % 12.0 to 10.5 % 

$250,000 to $499,999 8.5 to 8.0% 9.5 to 9.0% 10.5 to 10.0% 

$500,000 to $999,999 7.9 to 7.5% 8.9 to 8.5% 9.9 to 9.5% 

$1,000,000 to $3,999,999 7.3 to 6.8% 8.3 to 7.8% 9.3 to 8.8% 

$4,000,000 to $14,999,999 6.7 to 6.0% 7.7 to 7.0% 8.7 to 8.0% 

$15,000,000 to $49,999,999 5.9 to 5.0% 6.9 to 6.0% 7.9 to 7.0% 

$50,000,000 and above 5.0% 6.0% 7.0% 

Add to the negotiated rate for new construction 
the rate shown at right for that portion of the 

project which is renovation. 
2.0% 2.5% 3.0% 

 

75



CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  
25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  
MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  
FROM:  Penny Thompson, City Manager  
DATE:  March 27, 2023 
RE:  Letter from the Business Investment Group  
 
 

The City has received the following letter from the Business Investment Group, included here as a first read. 
As stated, the City of Caribou has previously conveyed these properties to the Business Investment Group: 
30 North Street  Map 34 Lot 56  August 23, 2021  Lank Bank project 
00 Sincock Street Map 28 Lot 149-F December 13, 2021  Broadband project 
Both parcels are currently vacant. 
 
BIG is asking for the following parcels. All acquired by the City through the automatic lien foreclosure process 
and cleaned up using blight funds from the Downtown TIF District: 
6 Midland Street Map 34 Lot 30  Account # 3536 
3 Hillcrest Avenue Map 34 Lot 53  Account # 3553 
7 Hillcrest Avenue Map 34 Lot 51  Account # 3551 
8 Hillcrest Avenue  Map 34 Lot 58  Account # 3557 
 

 
 
Suggested action: 
No action suggested. It is included as a first read and can be discussed if desired. 

HI
LL

 C
RE

ST
 A

VE
N

U
E 

NORTH STREET 

76



77



CARIBOU ADMINISTRATION  
25 HIGH STREET  

CARIBOU, ME. 04736  
MEMO  
 
TO:   Caribou City Council Members  
FROM:  Penny Thompson, City Manager  
DATE:  March 27, 2023 
RE:  2023 Municipal Budget Discussion  
 
 

 
Tonight was the public hearing on the 2023 Municipal Budget.  
 
This would be the time to pass the budget with or without amendments based on the wishes of the City Council. 
 
 
 
Suggested action: 
 
Please make a motion and second to pass, with or without amendment, the following: 
 

• Expense Budget 
 

• Capital Budget 
 

• Revenue Budget 
 
When making a motion with adjustments, please refer to the line item in the budget. 
 
 
 
 

78



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 374,592$                    380,805$        381,494$          378,964$                       380,805$                       $399,027.56 $381,494 95.6% $440,184 10.3% 15.4% Number from Finance

002 City Council Salaries
     01  Council Salaries 11,728$                      12,650$          12,510$             12,296$                         12,650$                          12,500$                          $12,510 100.1% $12,500 0.0% ‐0.1%

 
003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage 6,509$                        12,658$          4,668$               7,945$                            12,658$                          8,000$                             $4,668 58.4% $7,000 ‐12.5% 50.0%
     02  Advertising 3,587$                        4,040$            4,649$               4,092$                            4,040$                            4,000$                             $4,649 116.2% $5,000 25.0% 7.5%  
     03  Copier Rental 6,915$                        6,883$            6,466$               6,755$                            6,883$                            6,900$                             $6,466 93.7% $6,900 0.0% 6.7%
     05  Printer Ink 1,825$                        2,038$            2,653$               2,172$                            2,038$                            2,000$                             $2,653 132.6% $2,700 35.0% 1.8%
     07  Paper 1,056$                        1,557$            1,646$               1,420$                            1,557$                            1,500$                             $1,646 109.7% $1,500 0.0% ‐8.9%
     08  Office Supplies 7,844$                        8,696$            8,649$               8,396$                            8,696$                            8,700$                             $8,649 99.4% $8,700 0.0% 0.6%
     10  Annual Report 1,137$                        1,095$            890$                  1,041$                            1,095$                            1,100$                             $890 80.9% $1,100 0.0% 23.6%

005 General Govt. Legal Fees
     04  Legal Fees 26,996$                      20,873$          6,968$               18,279$                         20,873$                          25,000$                          $6,968 27.9% $20,000 ‐20.0% 187.0%

007 Audit
     01  Audit 17,500$                      19,500$          17,500$             18,167$                         19,500$                          17,500$                          $17,500 100.0% $28,500 62.9% 62.9% Went out to bid last year

008 Computer Maintenance
     01  Computer Maintenance 49,729$                      51,484$          54,635$             51,950$                         51,484$                          50,000$                          $54,635 109.3% $55,000 10.0% 0.7% Trio, Oakleaf, Zoom
     02  Hosted Services 9,100$                        9,328$            10,836$             9,754$                            9,328$                            9,500$                             $10,836 114.1% $11,000 15.8% 1.5% Wordpress, GoDaddy, Microsoft
    04 Computer Upgrades 18,750$             18,750$                         15,000$                          $18,750 125.0% $5,000 ‐66.7% ‐73.3%

009 Professional Dues
     01  Subscriptions $405 NEW Finance Department Request
     04  Professional Dues 9,095$                        8,154$            7,896$               8,381$                            8,154$                            9,100$                             $7,896 86.8% $9,000 ‐1.1% 14.0%

010 Travel Expenses
     01  Mileage 431$                            884$                763$                  693$                               884$                               1,000$                             $763 76.3% $2,100 110.0% 175.1% Manager, Finance & Clerk
     02  Meals & Lodging 206$                            1,320$            2,468$               1,331$                            1,320$                            1,500$                             $2,468 164.5% $10,200 580.0% 313.3% Manager, Finance & Clerk
     04 Conference Fees 90$                              835$                340$                  422$                               835$                               ‐$                                 $340 NEW $2,200 NEW 547.1% Manager, Finance & Clerk
     05 Training Expenses

011 Training & Education
     02  Training & Education 759$                            1,015$            2,077$               1,283$                            1,015$                            1,800$                             $2,077 115.4% $2,900 61.1% 39.6% Manager, Finance & Clerk

012 Elections
     01  Elections 16,342$                      6,722$            7,797$               10,287$                         6,722$                            9,000$                             $7,797 86.6% $10,000 11.1% 28.3% Replacing voting booths 1/yr

     02 Contracted Expenses ‐$                            ‐$                 508$                  169$                               ‐$                                1,000$                             $508 50.8% $1,000 0.0% 96.8% Includes mobile equipment insurance

014 New Equipment
     01  New Equipment 1,256$                        2,350$            1,399$               1,668$                            2,350$                            1,200$                             $1,399 116.6% $1,200 0.0% ‐14.2%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

10  General Government

2023 Draft Expense Budget

79



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

015 Telephone
     01  Cell Phone 308$                            197$                345$                  283$                               197$                               300$                                $345 114.9% $480 60.0% 39.2%
     04  Telephone 4,893$                        4,800$            4,785$               4,826$                            4,800$                            5,000$                             $4,785 95.7% $5,000 0.0% 4.5%
017 Communications
     01  Web Site
     03  Internet 1,259$                        1,259$            1,259$               1,259$                            1,259$                            1,300$                             $1,259 96.9% $1,300 0.0% 3.2%
018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 141,815$                    141,557$        138,398$          140,590$                       141,557$                       138,177$                        $138,398 100.2% 144,037$                       4.2% 4.1% Number from Finance

 
019 Miscellaneous Expenses
     01  Misc Expenses 374$                            8,600$            5,322$               4,765$                            8,600$                            8,000$                             $5,322 66.5% 8,000$                            0.0% 50.3%

020 Computers & Typewriters
     01‐Computers & Typewriters

021 Appropriation Allowance
     01‐Appropriation Allowance

034 Worker's Compensation
     01  Worker's Compensation 4,203$                        5,963$            5,297$               5,154$                            5,963$                            4,800$                             $5,297 110.4% 1,986$                            ‐58.6% ‐62.5% Number from Finance

036 Vehicle Insurance
     01 ‐ Vehicle Insurance 1,581$                        1,614$            1,583$               1,592$                            1,614$                            1,650$                             $1,583 95.9% 1,574$                            ‐4.6% ‐0.5% Number from finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 28,478$                      27,660$          29,044$             28,394$                         27,660$                          30,526$                          $29,044 95.1% 33,674$                          10.3% 15.9% Number from finance

(% to GA & ED subtracted out)
040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement 11,127$                      9,214$            8,536$               9,626$                            9,214$                            12,086$                          $8,536 70.6% 15,508$                          28.3% 81.7% Number from finance

(% to GA & ED subtracted out)
073 Vehicle Repairs
     01 Vehicle repairs 344$                            356$                551$                  417$                               356$                               2,400$                             $551 22.9% 1,200$                            ‐50.0% 118.0%

 
074 Vehicle Tires
     01 Tires 192$                            669$                80$                     314$                               669$                               1,000$                             $80 8.0% 1,000$                            0.0% 1150.0%

 
075 Gas/Oil/Filters
     01  Gas/Oil/Filters 318$                            456$                765$                  513$                               456$                               1,000$                             $765 76.5% 1,000$                            0.0% 30.7%
Totals 741,587$                    757,253$        753,548$          750,796$                       757,253$                       793,589$                        $751,526 94.7% 860,871$                       8.5% 14.5%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

10  General Government (continued)

2023 Draft Expense Budget

80



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

12 Nylander Museum
001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 6,500$                        1,240$            7,493$               5,078$                            1,240$                            29,016$                          7,493$                        25.8% 29,000$                          ‐0.1% 287.0% With another PT person

 
003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage
     03  Copier Rental
     08  Office Supplies 409$                            697$                480$                  528$                               697$                               1,000$                             480$                            48.0% 1,000$                            0.0% 108.4%

015 Telephone
     04 Telephone 934$                            1,012$            1,099$               1,015$                            1,012$                            1,000$                             1,099$                        109.9% 1,000$                            0.0% ‐9.0%

017 Communications
     01 Website
     03 Internet 1,020$                        1,060$            990$                  1,023$                            1,060$                            1,100$                             990$                            90.0% 1,100$                            0.0% 11.1%

026 Heating Fuel
     03  Heating Fuel 2,947$                        2,181$            4,450$               3,193$                            2,181$                            3,763$                             4,450$                        118.3% 5,000$                            32.9% 12.4%

027 Electricity
     11  Electricity 729$                            887$                552$                  722$                               887$                               1,385$                             552$                            39.8% 1,200$                            ‐13.4% 117.4%

028 Water
     05  Water 1,172$                        1,179$            1,382$               1,244$                            1,179$                            1,400$                             1,382$                        98.7% 1,450$                            3.6% 5.0% Per CUD, increase 6.17%

029 Sewer
     01  Sewer 250$                            251$                354$                  285$                               251$                               500$                                354$                            70.9% 400$                               ‐20.0% 12.8% Per CUD, increase 2.00%

030 Building Supplies
     01  Building Supplies 40$                              ‐$                 348$                  129$                               ‐$                                1,000$                             348$                            34.8% 1,000$                            0.0% 187.3%

031 Building Maintenance
     01  Building Maintenance 1,064$                        1,820$            680$                  1,188$                            1,820$                            2,000$                             680$                            34.0% 2,000$                            0.0% 194.0%
     04 Sprinkler Inspections 270$                  270$                               360$                                270$                            75.0% 360$                               0.0% 33.3%

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance 1,012$                        448$                319$                  593$                               448$                               500$                                319$                            63.8% 235$                               ‐53.0% ‐26.3% Number From Finance

034 Workers Comp
  01 Workers Comp 9$                                    NEW Number From Finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security ‐$                            ‐$                 570$                  190$                               2,449$                             570$                            23.3% 2,449$                            0.0% 329.6% Number From Finance

068 Janitotrial Services
     01 Property Maintenance ‐$                            ‐$                 2,700$                             ‐$                            0.0% 2,700$                            0.0%

394 Community Projects
     01 Project Expense ‐$                            ‐$                 5,000$                             ‐$                            0.0% 5,000$                            0.0%
Total 16,078$                      10,775$          18,988$             15,280$                         10,775$                          53,173$                          18,988$                      35.7% 53,903$                          1.4% 183.9%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

81



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

17 Health and Sanitation
022 Health Officer
     01  Health Officer 500$                            500$                500$                  500$                               500$                               500$                                500$                            100.0% 500$                               0.0% 0.0%

023 Tri‐Community Landfill
     01  Tri‐Community Landfill 250,303$                    252,756$        259,590$          254,216$                       252,756$                       257,040$                        259,590$                    101.0% 265,800$                       3.4% 2.4% AWS supplied this number

038 ‐ Social Security  
      01 ‐ Social Security ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                38$                                  ‐$                            0.0% 38$                                  0.0%
Totals 250,803$                253,256$     260,090$        254,716$                       253,256$                       257,578$                        260,090$                    101.0% 266,338$                       3.4% 2.4%

18 Municipal Building
024 Maintenance ‐ Comm. Center
     01  Maintenance ‐ Comm. Center
     02 Water & Sewer  974$                            662$                537$                  724$                               662$                               1,000$                             537$                            53.7% 1,000$                            0.0% 86.2%
     03 Janitorial
     04 Electric  1,704$                        2,483$            2,559$               2,249$                            2,483$                            3,104$                             2,559$                        82.4% 3,100$                            ‐0.1% 21.2%  
     06 Lions Building

 
025 Heating Fuel ‐ Lions Building
     01  Heating Fuel Lions Building 3,323$                        3,332$            7,592$               4,749$                            3,332$                            4,598$                             7,592$                        165.1% 7,600$                            65.3% 0.1%

026 Heating Fuel
     03  Heating Fuel 10,519$                      12,152$          21,464$             14,712$                         12,152$                          16,770$                          21,464$                      128.0% 21,500$                          28.2% 0.2%

027 Electricity
     11  Electricity 14,088$                      13,594$          15,623$             14,435$                         13,594$                          16,992$                          15,623$                      91.9% 16,000$                          ‐5.8% 2.4%

028 Water
     05  Water 749$                            797$                820$                  788$                               797$                               829$                                820$                            98.9% 875$                               5.6% 6.8% Per CUD, increase 6.17%

029 Sewer
     01  Sewer 576$                            585$                492$                  551$                               585$                               596$                                492$                            82.5% 500$                               ‐16.2% 1.6% Per CUD, increase 2.00%

030 Building Supplies
     01  Building Supplies 2,733$                        4,353$            2,822$               3,303$                            4,353$                            4,400$                             2,822$                        64.1% 4,000$                            ‐9.1% 41.7%

031 Building Maintenance
     01  Building Maintenance 6,585$                        7,936$            8,920$               7,814$                            7,936$                            10,000$                          8,920$                        89.2% 10,000$                          0.0% 12.1%
     03  Boiler Maintenance 667$                            872$                748$                  762$                               872$                               1,000$                             748$                            74.8% 1,000$                            0.0% 33.7%

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance 942$                            1,051$            1,134$               1,042$                            1,051$                            1,100$                             1,134$                        103.1% 1,217$                            10.7% 7.4% Number From Finance

033 Building Insurance‐Comm. Ctr.
     01  Building Ins. ‐ Comm. Ctr.

271 Contracted Services 
     01 Janitorial & Supplies 10,140$                      10,140$          10,415$             10,232$                         10,140$                          14,400$                          10,415$                      72.3% 14,400$                          0.0% 38.3% New Contract in 2022

Totals 52,998$                  57,959$       73,126$          61,361$                         57,959$                          74,790$                          73,126$                      97.8% 81,192$                          8.6% 11.0%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

82



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

20 General Assistance
001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 17,137$                      13,386$          11,045$             13,856$                         13,386$                          11,529$                          11,045$                      95.8% 13,050$                          13.2% 18.1% Clerk 30% of Salary

(number from finance)
003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage 76$                              149$                14$                     80$                                 149$                               125$                                14$                              11.3% 125$                               0.0% 788.4%
     05  Printer Ink
     08  Office Supplies ‐$                            ‐$                 32$                     11$                                 ‐$                                50$                                  32$                              64.9% 50$                                  0.0% 54.0%

010  Travel Exp  
     04 Conf Fee 192$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   64$                                 ‐$                                200$                                ‐$                            0.0% 200$                               0.0% #DIV/0!

011 Training & Education
     02  Training & Education 181$                            90$                  130$                  134$                               90$                                  300$                                130$                            43.3% 300$                               0.0% 130.8%

014 New Equipment
     01  New Equipment

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 6,237$                        6,850$            5,173$               6,087$                            6,850$                            6,064$                             5,173$                        85.3% 6,369$                            5.0% 23.1% Number From Finance

019 Miscellaneous Expenses
     01  Misc. Expenses 45$                              71$                  98$                     71$                                 71$                                  100$                                98$                              97.5% 100$                               0.0% 2.6%

034 Workers Comp
   01 Workers Comp 18$                                  NEW Number From finance

038 Social Security

     01  Social Security 1,156$                        916$                767$                  947$                               916$                               882$                                767$                            87.0% 998$                               13.2% 30.1% Clerk 30% of Number from Finance

040 City & State Retirement

     01  City & State Retirement 360$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   120$                               ‐$                                121$                                ‐$                            0.0% 137$                               13.2% Clerk 30% of Number from Finance

051 Equipment Maintenance
     05  Equipment Maintenance 1,200$                        1,100$            1,200$               1,167$                            1,100$                            1,200$                             1,200$                        100.0% 1,200$                            0.0% 0.0%

053 G.A. ‐ City
     01  G. A. City 20,976$                      7,967$            8,340$               12,428$                         7,967$                            20,000$                          8,340$                        41.7% 20,000$                          0.0% 139.8%
    02 ‐ G.A. State 1,175$                        ‐$                 ‐$                   392$                               ‐$                                500$                                ‐$                            0.0% 500$                               0.0%
    03 ‐ GA ‐ Nonreimbursible
Totals 48,735$                  30,530$       26,800$          35,355$                         30,530$                          41,071$                          26,800$                      65.3% 43,047$                          4.8% 60.6%

2022 2023

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2023 Draft Expense Budget

83



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 188,581$                    161,269$        108,662$          152,838$                       161,269$                       162,654$                        108,662$                    66.8% 129,275$                       ‐20.5% 19.0% Number From finance
     02  Overtime Pay 1,282$                        1,376$            2,106$               1,588$                            1,376$                            1,500$                             2,106$                        140.4% 1,500$                            0.0% ‐28.8% (Plus Plumbing Inspector)
     07  Salaries‐Bd of Assessors 1,500$                        1,500$            1,500$               1,500$                            1,500$                            1,500$                             1,500$                        100.0% 1,500$                            0.0% 0.0%

003 Office Supplies  
     01  Postage
     05  Printer Ink ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                                ‐$                                
     08  Office Supplies 305$                            132$                73$                     170$                               132$                               300$                                73$                              24.5% 300$                               0.0% 308.6%

006 Legal Fees
     01  Legal Fees

009 Professional Dues
     01 Subscriptions 656$                            24$                  16$                     232$                               24$                                  650$                                16$                              2.5% 100$                               ‐84.6% 525.0% Core Logic / Marshall Valuation
     02 IAAO 460$                            480$                495$                  478$                               480$                               620$                                495$                            79.8% 600$                               ‐3.2% 21.2%
     04  Professional Dues 582$                            210$                213$                  335$                               210$                               400$                                213$                            53.3% 400$                               0.0% 87.8% certifications = dues

 010 Travel Expenses
     01 Mileage 1,195$                        578$                1,246$               1,006$                            578$                               1,000$                             1,246$                        124.6% 1,750$                            75.0% 40.5%
     02 Meal & Lodge 551$                            56$                  1,333$               647$                               56$                                  1,000$                             1,333$                        133.3% 2,500$                            150.0% 87.5%
     04 CONF FEE ‐$                            344$                ‐$                   115$                               344$                               500$                                ‐$                            0.0% 500$                               0.0%
     05  Travel Expenses

011 Training & Education
     02  Training & Education 2,926$                        1,207$            872$                  1,668$                            1,207$                            1,500$                             872$                            58.1% 1,000$                            ‐33.3% 14.7% Assessing, code + inspections

013 Car Allowance
     01  Car Allowance

015 Telephone
     01  Cell Phone 594$                            450$                705$                  583$                               450$                               700$                                705$                            100.7% 725$                               3.6% 2.8% Smart phone
     04  Telephone 429$                            452$                450$                  444$                               452$                               475$                                450$                            94.8% 475$                               0.0% 5.5%

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 39,535$                      35,487$          14,801$             29,941$                         35,487$                          14,970$                          14,801$                      98.9% 15,767$                          5.3% 6.5% Number From finance

019 Miscellaneous Expenses
     01  Misc. Expense

034 Workers Comp
     01  Workers Comp 644$                            361$                355$                  453$                               361$                               640$                                355$                            55.4% 590$                               ‐7.8% 66.3% Number From Finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 14,025$                      12,134$          8,873$               11,678$                         12,134$                          9,300$                             8,873$                        95.4% 9,431$                            1.4% 6.3% Number From finance

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

22 Tax Assessing

2023 Draft Expense Budget

84



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement 2,636$                        3,545$            1,400$               2,527$                            3,545$                            2,100$                             1,400$                        66.7% 2,319$                            10.4% 65.6% Number From finance

051 Equipment Maint
     01  Software 770$                            840$                840$                  817$                               840$                               850$                                840$                            98.8% 840$                               ‐1.2% 0.0%
056 Contracted Services
     01  Registry 190$                            277$                ‐$                   156$                               277$                               300$                                ‐$                            0.0% 100$                               ‐66.7%
     04  Contracted Services 3,096$                        4,131$            52,655$             19,961$                         4,131$                            4,500$                             52,655$                      1170.1% 55,000$                          1122.2% 4.5% Contract Assessor + maps
     01  Assessment Reserve
  ## Comp Plan 17,000$                          NEW capital?

058 Codes Maintenance
     01  Codes Maintenance 255$                            105$                ‐$                   120$                               105$                               300$                                ‐$                            0.0% 300$                               0.0%

070 Clothing Allowance
     03  Clothing 269$                            44$                  268$                  194$                               44$                                  300$                                268$                            89.3% 300$                               0.0% 12.0%

073 Vehicle Repairs
     01 Vehicle repairs 909$                            1,088$            756$                  918$                               1,088$                            1,500$                             756$                            50.4% 1,000$                            ‐33.3% 32.3%

074 Vehicle Tires
     01 Tires 508$                            134$                80$                     241$                               134$                               600$                                80$                              13.3% 600$                               0.0% 650.0%  

075 Gas/Oil/Filters
     01  Gas/Oil/Filters 587$                            730$                1,038$               785$                               730$                               1,000$                             1,038$                        103.8% 1,000$                            0.0% ‐3.6%
Totals 262,484$                228,975$     200,759$        230,740$                       228,975$                   211,181$                        198,737$                    94.1% 244,871$                       16.0% 23.2%

22 Tax Assessing (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

85



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 125,381$                    127,084$        127,289.00$     126,585$                       127,084$                       133,594$                        127,289$                    95.3% 144,061$                       7.8% 13.2% Number From finance
     02  Overtime

003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage 251$                            337$                258.90$             282$                               337$                               350$                                259$                            74.0% 350$                               0.0% 35.2%
     02 Advertising 26$                              72$                  81.50$               60$                                 72$                                  100$                                82$                              81.5% 100$                               0.0% 22.7%
     03  Copier Rental 1,654$                        1,544$            1,609.63$         1,603$                            1,544$                            2,000$                             1,610$                        80.5% 2,000$                            0.0% 24.3%  
     05  Printer Ink
     07  Paper 77$                              61$                  171.66$             103$                               61$                                  200$                                172$                            85.8% 200$                               0.0% 16.5%
     08  Office Supplies 459$                            1,082$            1,376.18$         972$                               1,082$                            1,400$                             1,376$                        98.3% 1,400$                            0.0% 1.7%
     11  Equip Rental

005 Gen Gov't Leg
     01  CCC&I

008 Computer Maintenance
     01  Computer Maintenance 3,096$                        4,517$            1,998.98$         3,204$                            4,517$                            7,600$                             1,999$                        26.3% 5,600$                            ‐26.3% 180.1% Line decreased by $2,000

009 Professional Dues
     01 Subscriptions 119$                            179$                179.00$             159$                               179$                               179$                                179$                            100.0% 379$                               111.7% 111.7% Increase $200
     04 PROF DUES 200$                            200$                289.00$             230$                               200$                               200$                                289$                            144.5% 400$                               100.0% 38.4% Increase $200

010 Travel Expenses
     01  Mileage
     02  Meals & Lodging
     05  Travel Expenses ‐$                            ‐$                 56.82$               19$                                 ‐$                                500$                                57$                              11.4% 1,000$                            100.0% 1659.9% ALA Conference Expenses

011 Training & Education
     02  Training & Education ‐$                            95$                  435.00$             177$                               95$                                  500$                                435$                            87.0% 500$                               0.0% 14.9%

014 New Equipment
     01 New Equipment ‐$                            372$                1,191.96$         521$                               372$                               1,200$                             1,192$                        99.3% 1,200$                            0.0% 0.7%

015 Telephone
     04  Telephone 1,834$                        1,975$            1,968.00$         1,926$                            1,975$                            2,000$                             1,968$                        98.4% 2,000$                            0.0% 1.6%

016‐02 Misc Income

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 11,392$                      11,484$          12,117.48$       11,664$                         11,484$                          12,118$                          12,117$                      100.0% 12,740$                          5.1% 5.1% Number From finance

019 Miscellaneous Expenses
     01  Misc. Expenses ‐$                            182.96$             91$                                 200$                                183$                            91.5% 200$                               0.0% 9.3%

026 Heating Fuel
     03  Heating Fuel 9,565$                        11,771$          19,629.19$       13,655$                         11,771$                          16,244$                          19,629$                      120.8% 16,244$                          0.0% ‐17.2%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

25 Library

2023 Draft Expense Budget

86



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

027 Electricity
     11 Electricity 3,758$                        4,679$            5,460.26$         4,632$                            4,679$                            5,849$                             5,460$                        93.4% 5,849$                            0.0% 7.1%

028 Water
     05  Water  254$                            251$                282.72$             262$                               251$                               300$                                283$                            94.2% 318$                               6.0% 12.5% increase of 6.17%
029 Sewer
     01  Sewer 252$                            251$                275.20$             259$                               251$                               275$                                $275 100% $281 2.2% 2.1% increase of 2.00%

031 Building Maintenance  
     01  Building Maintenance 5,691$                        3,652$            3,949.79$         4,431$                            3,652$                            4,000$                             $3,950 99% $4,000 0.0% 1.3%

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance 1,660$                        1,769$            1,837.49$         1,756$                            1,769$                            1,800$                             $1,837 102% $1,909 6.1% 3.9% Number from finance

034 Worker's Compensation
     01  Worker's Compensation 386$                            338$                339.48$             354$                               338$                               340$                                $339 100% $501 47.2% 47.4% Number from finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 9,255$                        9,419$            9,490.97$         9,389$                            9,419$                            10,220$                          $9,491 93% $11,021 7.8% 16.1% Number from finance

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                 $0 $0  Number from finance 

055 Books & Periodicals
     01  Mars and Swift (0)$                              
     03  Books & Periodicals 15,971$                      15,768$          13,578.71$       15,106$                         15,768$                          17,000$                          $13,579 80% $17,000 0.0% 25.2%

075 Gas/Oil/Filter
     01   Gas/Oil/Filter ‐$                            ‐$                 462.96$             154$                               ‐$                                 $463 $500 100.0% 8.0%

271 Contracted Services
       01 Janitorial & Supplies 9,078$                        9,800$            11,610.16$       10,163$                         9,800$                            12,000$                          $11,610 97% $15,400 28.3% 32.6%  

406 Programming
     01 Library Programs 591$                            434$                856.36$             627$                               434$                               1,000$                             $856 86% $1,200 20.0% 40.1% Increase of $200
     02 Archives 279$                            566$                207.85$             351$                               566$                               500$                                $208 42% $500 0.0% 140.6%
Totals 201,230$                    209,721$        219,209$          210,053$                       209,721$                       233,691$                        $217,187 93% $246,852 5.6% 13.7%

25 Library (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

87



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 846,236$                    866,319$        929,654$          880,736$                       866,319$                       959,851$                        929,654$                    96.9% 1,016,948$                    5.9% 9.4% Number from finance
     02  Overtime 298,616$                    343,920$        331,183$          324,573$                       343,920$                       371,000$                        331,183$                    89.3% 351,000$                       ‐5.4% 6.0% Number from finance
     05  Stand By Pay 45,816$                      55,256$          33,004$             44,692$                         55,256$                          56,000$                          33,004$                      58.9% 45,000$                          ‐19.6% 36.3% Number from finance
     07  Amb. Billing Salaries 72,780$                      64,783$          51,411$             62,992$                         64,783$                          50,651$                          51,411$                      101.5% 27,912$                          ‐44.9% ‐45.7% Number from finance
     08  Special Transports Ambulance Biller retiring in 2023

003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage 55$                              9$                    77$                     47$                                 9$                                    100$                                77$                              77.5% 150$                               50.0% 93.6%
    02 Advertising 136$                            136$                              
    03 Copier Rent 848$                            904$                897$                  883$                               904$                               960$                                897$                            93.5% 936$                               ‐2.5% 4.3%
     04 Equipment Repair
     05  Printer Ink 92$                              99$                  ‐$                   64$                                 99$                                  200$                                ‐$                            0.0% 200$                               0.0% #DIV/0!
     07  Paper ‐$                            ‐$                               
     08  Office Supplies 1,082$                        799$                710$                  864$                               799$                               1,500$                             710$                            47.3% 1,500$                            0.0% 111.3%
     09  Amb. Billing Supplies 6,573$                        7,597$            3,404$               5,858$                            7,597$                            4,500$                             3,404$                        75.6% Contract for Ambulance Billing
     13 Houlton Supplies 1,311$                        1,311$                           
     14 Calais Supplies 1,997$                        2,481$            2,476$               2,318$                            2,481$                            1,800$                             2,476$                        137.6% Ambulance Biller retiring in 2023
     15 Van Buren Supplies 16$                              16$                                
     16 Island Falls Supplies 1,295$                        1,638$            1,776$               1,570$                            1,638$                            1,000$                             1,776$                        177.6% Ambulance Biller retiring in 2023
     17 Patten Supplies 1,543$                        1,868$            1,877$               1,763$                            1,868$                            1,300$                             1,877$                        144.4% Ambulance Biller retiring in 2023

005 Legal Fees
    04 Legal Fees

009 Professional Dues
    01  Subscriptions
     04 Professional Dues 2,960$                        1,375$            1,960$               2,098$                            1,375$                            3,000$                             1,960$                        65.3% 3,000$                            0.0% 53.1%

010  Travel Expenses
     01  Mileage ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                300$                                ‐$                            0.0% 500$                               66.7% #DIV/0!
     02  Meals & Lodging
     05  Travel Expenses 1,580$                        ‐$                 ‐$                   527$                               ‐$                                1,750$                             ‐$                            0.0% 2,000$                            14.3% #DIV/0!

011 Training & Education
     02  Training & Education  3,813$                        4,057$            2,295$               3,388$                            4,057$                            8,000$                             2,295$                        28.7% 10,000$                          25.0% 335.7%

014 New Equipment
     01  New Equipment 6,542$                        9,280$            8,825$               8,216$                            9,280$                            10,000$                          8,825$                        88.3% 10,000$                          0.0% 13.3%

015 Telephone
     01  Cell Phone 4,635$                        4,341$            6,531$               5,169$                            4,341$                            4,500$                             6,531$                        145.1% 5,000$                            11.1% ‐23.4%
     04  Telephone 4,794$                        4,251$            4,245$               4,430$                            4,251$                            5,500$                             4,245$                        77.2% 5,500$                            0.0% 29.6%

016 Misc Income
     01  Insurance Reports

017 Communications
     01 Website
     03  Internet 1,067$                        1,067$            1,067$               1,067$                            1,067$                            1,100$                             1,067$                        97.0% 1,100$                            0.0% 3.1%

31 Fire and Ambulance

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

88



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 325,323$                    315,979$        354,602$          331,968$                       315,979$                       352,714$                        354,602$                    100.5% 371,350$                       5.3% 4.7%
     02  Ambulance Health Insurance 32,192$                      29,318$          25,326$             28,945$                         29,318$                          27,026$                          25,326$                      93.7% 8,392$                            ‐68.9% ‐66.9%
019 Miscellaneous Exp.
     01  Misc. Expense 998$                            844$                628$                  823$                               844$                               1,000$                             628$                            62.8% 1,000$                            0.0% 59.3%

026 Heating Fuel
     03  Heating Fuel 17,832$                      21,397$          23,425$             20,885$                         21,397$                          29,527$                          23,425$                      79.3% 29,000$                          ‐1.8% 23.8%

027 Electricity
     11 Electricity 7,518$                        8,253$            11,006$             8,926$                            8,253$                            10,317$                          11,006$                      106.7% 10,500$                          1.8% ‐4.6%

028 Water
     05  Water 803$                            917$                1,056$               925$                               917$                               1,100$                             1,056$                        96.0% 1,200$                            9.1% 13.6% increase 6.17%

029 Sewer
     01 Sewer 611$                            663$                637$                  637$                               663$                               850$                                637$                            74.9% 900$                               5.9% 41.3% increase 2.00%

030 Building Supplies
     01  Building Supplies 4,537$                        4,078$            4,892$               4,502$                            4,078$                            4,800$                             4,892$                        101.9% 5,200$                            8.3% 6.3%

031 Building Maintenance
     01  Building Maintenance 20,000$                      17,280$          13,865$             17,048$                         17,280$                          20,000$                          13,865$                      69.3% 20,000$                          0.0% 44.3%

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance 1,553$                        1,216$            1,774$               1,514$                            1,216$                            1,279$                             1,774$                        138.8% 2,270$                            77.5% 27.9% Number from finance

034 Workers Comp.
     01  Workers Comp. 110,195$                    85,491$          84,430$             93,372$                         85,491$                          80,291$                          84,430$                      105.2% 77,650$                          ‐3.3% ‐8.0% Number from finance

035 Unemployment Comp
     01  Unemployment Comp. 6,856$                        6,947$            6,898$               6,901$                            6,947$                            7,210$                             6,898$                        95.7% 7,210$                            0.0% 4.5% Number from finance

036 Vehicle Insurance
     01  Vehicle Insurance 14,732$                      15,692$          15,933$             15,452$                         15,692$                          15,884$                          15,933$                      100.3% 15,981$                          0.6% 0.3% Number from finance

037 Liability Insurance
     01 Liability Insurance 3,767$                        3,944$            3,981$               3,897$                            3,944$                            3,251$                             3,981$                        122.5% 3,251$                            0.0% ‐18.3% Number from finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 93,024$                      98,550$          99,056$             96,877$                         98,550$                          109,969$                        99,056$                      90.1% 110,226$                       0.2% 11.3% Number from finance

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement 72,111$                      79,047$          129,119$          93,426$                         79,047$                          163,167$                        129,119$                    79.1% 187,379$                       14.8% 45.1% Number from finance

046 Recognitions
     01   Recognitions

Number from finance

31 Fire and Ambulance (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

89



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

051 Equipment Maint.
     01  Software
     03  Maintenance Contracts 10,902$                      12,053$          11,737$             11,564$                         12,053$                          9,000$                             11,737$                      130.4% 10,000$                          11.1% ‐14.8%
     05  Equipment Main. 6,812$                        4,226$            9,586$               6,875$                            4,226$                            8,000$                             9,586$                        119.8% 10,000$                          25.0% 4.3%
067 Paid Call Firefighters
     01  Paid Call Firefighters 26,000$                      35,175$          25,609$             28,928$                         35,175$                          26,000$                          25,609$                      98.5% 31,000$                          19.2% 21.1%

068 Janitorial Services
     01  Janitorial Services

069 Paid Call Insurance
     01  Paid Call Insurance ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                400$                                ‐$                            0.0% 400$                               0.0% #DIV/0!

070 Clothing Allowance
     01  Uniforms 7,721$                        8,000$            8,290$               8,004$                            8,000$                            8,000$                             8,290$                        103.6% 8,200$                            2.5% ‐1.1%
     02  Turnout Gear 779$                            1,500$            2,500$               1,593$                            1,500$                            2,500$                             2,500$                        100.0% 10,200$                          308.0% 308.0% Several sets ruined in 2022
     03  Clothing 
     04  Boots 414$                            500$                1,000$               638$                               500$                               1,000$                             1,000$                        100.0% 1,000$                            0.0% 0.0%
     06  Clothing Allowance

071 Radio Maintenance
     01  Vehicle  912$                            1,193$            705$                  937$                               1,193$                            3,500$                             705$                            20.1% 3,500$                            0.0% 396.5%
     02  Building 21$                     21$                             
     03  Radio Maintenance 1,334$                        2,102$            3,355$               2,264$                            2,102$                            5,000$                             3,355$                        67.1% 5,000$                            0.0% 49.0%

072 Ladder Testing
     01  Ladder Testing 3,975$                        ‐$                 850$                  1,608$                            ‐$                                4,000$                             850$                            21.3% 4,000$                            0.0% 370.6%

073 Vehicle Repair
     01  Vehicle Repair 19,620$                      14,986$          13,479$             16,028$                         14,986$                          15,000$                          13,479$                      89.9% 16,000$                          6.7% 18.7%

074 Tires
     01  Tires 5,433$                        5,847$            2,324$               4,534$                            5,847$                            7,500$                             2,324$                        31.0% 7,500$                            0.0% 222.8%
     02 Tire Replacement 

075 Gas/Oil/Filters
     01  Gas/Oil/Filters 1,999$                        3,970$            11,356$             5,775$                            3,970$                            6,000$                             11,356$                      189.3% 6,500$                            8.3% ‐42.8%

076 Diesel Fuel
     01  Diesel Fuel 20,412$                      20,604$          20,181$             20,399$                         20,604$                          44,091$                          20,181$                      45.8% 40,000$                          ‐9.3% 98.2%

077 Batteries
     01  Vehicle
     02  Equipment ‐$                            613$                823$                  479$                               613$                               1,000$                             823$                            82.3% 1,000$                            0.0% 21.6%
     03  Batteries

078 Field Expenses
     01 Field Expenses 311$                            ‐$                 342$                  218$                               ‐$                                1,000$                             342$                            34.2% 1,000$                            0.0% 192.1%

31 Fire and Ambulance (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

90



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

079 Employee Physicals
     01  Employee Physicals 168$                            142$                20$                     110$                               142$                               1,200$                             20$                              1.7% 1,200$                            0.0% 5900.0%
080 Paid Call Volunteers
    01  Paid Call Volunteers 932$                            4,165$            14,348$             6,482$                            4,165$                            3,000$                             14,348$                      478.3% 9,000$                            200.0% ‐37.3%

082 Bad Debt Allowance
     01  Bad Debt Allowance 108,453$                    126,524$        117,918$          117,631$                       126,524$                       100,000$                        117,918$                    117.9% 75,000$                          ‐25.0% ‐36.4%
     02 Collection Fee 1,664$                        2,045$            1,237$               1,648$                            2,045$                            2,000$                             1,237$                        61.8% 2,000$                            0.0% 61.7%
083 Contractual Allowance
     01  Contractual Allowance

085 Transport Meals
     01  Transport Meals 5,506$                        3,411$            3,852$               4,256$                            3,411$                            7,000$                             3,852$                        55.0% 7,000$                            0.0% 81.7%

086 Air Transports
     01  Air Transports

087 Medical Supplies
     01  Ambulance Supplies 10,484$                      12,602$          12,531$             11,872$                         12,602$                          10,500$                          12,531$                      119.3% 11,000$                          4.8% ‐12.2%
     02  Oxygen 3,130$                        3,508$            7,515$               4,718$                            3,508$                            3,500$                             7,515$                        214.7% 4,000$                            14.3% ‐46.8%
     03  Medical Supplies 9,575$                        6,693$            13,889$             10,052$                         6,693$                            9,250$                             13,889$                      150.2% 9,500$                            2.7% ‐31.6%

292 EMS Licenses
     01  EMS License 857$                            1,765$            1,367$               1,330$                            1,765$                            1,870$                             1,367$                        73.1% 1,900$                            1.6% 39.0%

056 Ambulance Billing
04 Comstar 22,550$             31,000$                          22,550$                      72.7% 49,200$                          58.7% 118.2% Full year of contract in 2023

Totals 2,269,291$                2,337,347$    2,471,472$       2,359,370$                    2,331,284$                    2,628,774$                     2,465,406$                93.8% 2,657,354$                    1.1% 7.8%

31 Fire and Ambulance (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

91



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

35 Police
001 Salaries  
     01  Regular Pay 889,306$                    922,801$        951,857$          921,322$                       922,801$                       942,888$                        951,857$                    101.0% 970,098$                       2.9% 1.9% Number from finance
     02  Overtime 68,354$                      72,898$          62,454$             67,902$                         72,898$                          72,500$                          62,454$                      86.1% 70,000$                          ‐3.4% 12.1% Number from finance
     04 Nursing
     06  Police Reserves Salary 37,746$                      41,154$          27,338$             35,412$                         41,154$                          50,000$                          27,338$                      54.7% 45,000$                          ‐10.0% 64.6% Number from finance

003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage 622$                            315$                313$                  417$                               315$                               600$                                313$                            52.2% 600$                               0.0% 91.8%
     02  Advertising ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                250$                                ‐$                            0.0% 250$                               0.0% #DIV/0!  
     03 Copier Rental 1,920$                        1,920$            1,920$               1,920$                            1,920$                            1,920$                             1,920$                        100.0% 1,920$                            0.0% 0.0%
     05  Printer Ink  974$                            789$                676$                  813$                               789$                               800$                                676$                            84.5% 800$                               0.0% 18.4% Ink cost has increased
     07  Paper 483$                            287$                208$                  326$                               287$                               500$                                208$                            41.5% 500$                               0.0% 140.9%
     08  Office Supplies 1,322$                        1,810$            1,345$               1,493$                            1,810$                            2,000$                             1,345$                        67.3% 2,000$                            0.0% 48.7% costs have increased

006 Legal Fees
     01  Legal Fees

009 Professional Dues
     01  Subscriptions 566$                            1,030$            1,608$               1,068$                            1,030$                            700$                                1,608$                        229.7% 1,700$                            142.9% 5.7% mandated subscriptions
     04  Professional Dues 485$                            625$                720$                  610$                               625$                               900$                                720$                            80.0% 1,000$                            11.1% 38.9%

010 Travel Expenses
     01  Mileage ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                300$                                ‐$                            0.0% 300$                               0.0% #DIV/0!
     02  Meals & Lodging 105$                            571$                1,368$               681$                               571$                               1,200$                             1,368$                        114.0% 1,700$                            41.7% 24.2% Increase in cost of lodging
     05  Travel Expenses 359$                            ‐$                 103$                  154$                               ‐$                                1,000$                             103$                            10.3% 1,000$                            0.0% 873.7%

011 Training & Education
     02  Training & Education 15,468$                      34,421$          23,504$             24,464$                         34,421$                          33,000$                          23,504$                      71.2% 33,000$                          0.0% 40.4% 2 to BLETP, firearms instructor

013 Car Allowance
     01  Car Allowance 2,648$                        3,039$            3,229$               2,972$                            3,039$                            3,600$                             3,229$                        89.7% 3,600$                            0.0% 11.5%

014 New Equipment
     01  New Equipment 2,516$                        2,107$            704$                  1,776$                            2,107$                            2,500$                             704$                            28.2% 3,000$                            20.0% 326.0% 2 new Officers in 2023

015 Telephone
     01  Cell Phone 3,353$                        4,463$            4,847$               4,221$                            4,463$                            4,500$                             4,847$                        107.7% 4,500$                            0.0% ‐7.2%
     04  Telephone 3,091$                        3,178$            3,146$               3,138$                            3,178$                            3,500$                             3,146$                        89.9% 3,500$                            0.0% 11.3%

017 Communication Fees
     01  Web Site
     03  Internet 2,311$                        2,643$            2,547$               2,500$                            2,643$                            4,900$                             2,547$                        52.0% 4,900$                            0.0% 92.4%

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 297,411$                    270,750$        277,896$          282,019$                       270,750$                       291,309$                        277,896$                    95.4% 302,938$                       4.0% 9.0% Number from finance

019 Miscellaneous Expenses
     01  Misc. Expense 729$                            845$                787$                  787$                               845$                               1,500$                             787$                            52.5% 1,500$                            0.0% 90.5%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

92



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

027 Electricity
     11  Electricity
     13  Radio Tower 160$                            173$                257$                  197$                               173$                               216$                                257$                            119.0% 250$                               15.7% ‐2.7% Rate increase
028 Water
     05  Water 564$                            468$                516$                  516$                               468$                               600$                                516$                            86.0% 600$                               0.0% 16.3% increase 6.17%

030  Building Supplies
     01  Building Supplies 1,464$                        2,038$            2,175$               1,892$                            2,038$                            1,600$                             2,175$                        135.9% 2,000$                            25.0% ‐8.0% Increase in cost of supplies

031 Building Maintenance
     01  Building Maintenance 3,000$                        4,763$            2,905$               3,556$                            4,763$                            4,500$                             2,905$                        64.5% 4,500$                            0.0% 54.9%

032 Property Insurance
     01 Property Insurance 558$                            612$                660$                  610$                               612$                               612$                                660$                            107.8% 709$                               15.8% 7.4% Number from finance

034 Worker's Compensation
     01  Worker's Compensation 32,947$                      28,145$          27,874$             29,655$                         28,145$                          27,260$                          27,874$                      102.3% 24,928$                          ‐8.6% ‐10.6% Number from finance

036 Vehicle Insurance
     01  Vehicle Insurance 8,036$                        7,955$            7,875$               7,955$                            7,955$                            7,784$                             7,875$                        101.2% 7,965$                            2.3% 1.1% Number from finance

037 Liability Insurance
     01 Liability Insurance 10,096$                      10,363$          10,416$             10,292$                         10,363$                          10,320$                          10,416$                      100.9% 10,513$                          1.9% 0.9% Number from finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 73,423$                      78,127$          77,356$             76,302$                         78,127$                          81,502.15$                     77,356$                      94.9% 83,009.96$                    1.9% 7.3% Number from finance

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement 47,130$                      57,725$          64,730$             56,528$                         57,725$                          64,567$                          64,730$                      100.3% 121,101$                       87.6% 87.1% Number from finance

(change in union contract)
044 Reimbursement
     01  Reimbursement

051 Equipment Maintenance
     05  Equipment Maintenance 545$                            535$                166$                  415$                               535$                               1,000$                             166$                            16.6% 1,500$                            50.0% 805.0%

068 Janitorial Services
     01  Janitorial Services 6,175$                        4,967$            5,700$               5,614$                            4,967$                            10,000$                          5,700$                        57.0% 15,400$                          54.0% 170.2%

070 Clothing Allowance
     01  Uniforms 6,405$                        4,480$            8,305$               6,397$                            4,480$                            6,400$                             8,305$                        129.8% 8,000$                            25.0% ‐3.7% Increased costs of uniforms

071 Radio Maintenance
     01  Vehicle  210$                            446$                315$                  324$                               446$                               250$                                315$                            126.0% 500$                               100.0% 58.7% Increased costs to maintain
     03  Radio Maintenance 459$                            55$                  583$                  366$                               55$                                  750$                                583$                            77.7% 1,000$                            33.3% 71.6% Increased costs to maintain

073 Vehicle Repair
     01  Vehicle Repair 22,579$                      14,952$          19,944$             19,158$                         14,952$                          18,000$                          19,944$                      110.8% 18,000$                          0.0% ‐9.7%

35 Police (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

93



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

074 Tires
     01  Tires 4,987$                        2,842$            4,040$               3,956$                            2,842$                            3,200$                             4,040$                        126.3% 4,000$                            25.0% ‐1.0% Increased cost of tires

075 Gas/Oil/Filters
     01  Gas/Oil/Filters 23,888$                      29,726$          38,398$             30,671$                         29,726$                          46,624$                          38,398$                      82.4% 50,000$                          7.2% 30.2% Increased cost of gas
077 Batteries
     01  Vehicle

079 Employee Physicals
     01  Employee Physicals ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                500$                                ‐$                            0.0% 500$                               0.0%
     02 Psycological Evaluations 1,500$                        750$                ‐$                   750$                               750$                               1,500$                             ‐$                            0.0% 1,500$                            0.0%
     03 Poly Graph Testing  300$                            300$                350$                  317$                               300$                               500$                                350$                            70.0% 500$                               0.0% 42.9%

089 Equipment Reserves
     01  Equipment Reserves 473$                            90$                  ‐$                   188$                               90$                                  1,000$                             ‐$                            0.0% 1,000$                            0.0%

090 Dog Constable
     01  Dog Constable 380$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   127$                               ‐$                                6,000$                             ‐$                            0.0% 6,000$                            0.0%

093 Meals for Prisoners
     01  Meals for Prisioners ‐$                            149$                4,391$               1,513$                            149$                               4,000$                             4,391$                        109.8% 4,500$                            12.5% 2.5% Increase in price and number

094 Video Equipment
     01  Video Equipment 655$                            537$                641$                  611$                               537$                               800$                                641$                            80.1% 800$                               0.0% 24.8%

097 Uniform Maintenance
     01  Uniform Mainenance ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                200$                                ‐$                            0.0% 200$                               0.0%

098 Medical Tests/Supplies
     01  Medical Tests/Supplies 4,536$                        15,347$          722$                  6,868$                            15,347$                          3,500$                             722$                            20.6% 3,500$                            0.0% 385.0%
     02 Laundry 293$                            563$                543$                  466$                               563$                               650$                                543$                            83.5% 650$                               0.0% 19.7%
     03 Drug Testing 15,945$             15,945$                         15,000$                          15,945$                      106.3% 17,000$                          13.3% 6.6% Increase in number of drug cases

102 Computer Tech Support
     01  Computer Tech Support 6,190$                        8,404$            7,707$               7,434$                            8,404$                            7,500$                             7,707$                        102.8% 10,400$                          38.7% 34.9%
     02  Recorder Maint 1,734$                        1,734$            1,734$               1,734$                            1,734$                            1,900$                             1,734$                        91.3% 1,900$                            0.0% 9.6% Capital? Need new in 2024

179 Animal Shelter Services
     01  Animal Shelter Services 14,740$                      14,740$          13,313$             14,264$                         14,740$                          14,740.20$                     13,313$                      90.3% 14,740.00$                    0.0% 10.7%

229 Small Equipment Reserve
        01 Small Equipment Reserve

230 Police Car Reserve
        01 Police Car Reserve
Totals 1,603,194$                1,660,672$    1,688,173$       1,650,680$                    1,660,672$                    1,767,386$                     1,684,129$                95.3% 1,870,971$                    5.9% 11.1%

35 Police (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

94



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

38 Protection
105 Street Lights
     01  Street Lights 24,618$                      24,155$          24,598$             24,457$                         24,155$                          25,000$                          24,598$                      98.4% 25,000$                          0.0% 1.6%
     02 Maintenance 20,000$                      16,674$          3,624$               13,433$                         16,674$                          17,000$                          3,624$                        21.3% 10,000$                          ‐41.2% 175.9%

106 Hydrant Fees
     01  Hydrant Fees 321,433$                    322,027$        326,833$          323,431$                       322,027$                       325,000$                        326,833$                    100.6% 347,000$                       6.8% 6.2%

Totals 366,051$                362,857$     355,056$        361,321$                   362,857$                   367,000$                        355,056$                    96.7% 382,000$                       4.1% 7.6%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

95



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

001 Salaries
     07  Salaries 6,858$                        7,135$            7,278$               7,090$                            7,135$                            7,278$                             7,278$                        100.0% 7,752$                            6.5% 6.5% Number from finance

003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage
     08  Office Supplies ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                40$                                  ‐$                            0.0% 40$                                  0.0%

010 Travel Expenses
     05 Travel Expenses

011 Training & Education
     02  Training & Education ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                150$                                ‐$                            0.0% 150$                               0.0%

014 New Equipment
     01  New Equipment 15$                              ‐$                 793$                  269$                               ‐$                                750$                                793$                            105.8% 750$                               0.0% ‐5.5%

015 Telephone
     04  Telephone 172$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   57$                                 ‐$                                365$                                ‐$                            0.0% 365$                               0.0%

017 Communications
     03  Communications (Internet)

019 Miscellaneous Expenses
     01  Misc. Expenses ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                100$                                ‐$                            0.0% 100$                               0.0%

024‐02 Water & Sewer

027 Electricity
     11  Electricity 170$                            193$                228$                  197$                               193$                               241$                                228$                            94.6% 241$                               0.0% 5.7%
     13 Radio Tower
     12 PWPUMP HOUSE

030 Building Supplies
     01  Building Supplies 19$                              129$                ‐$                   49$                                 129$                               200$                                ‐$                            0.0% 200$                               0.0%

031 Building Maintenance
     01  Building Maintenance 212$                            301$                14$                     176$                               301$                               750$                                14$                              1.9% 750$                               0.0% 5257.1%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

39 Emergency Management

2023 Draft Expense Budget

96



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance 355$                            375$                384$                  371$                               375$                               392$                                384$                            98.0% 377$                               ‐4.0% ‐2.0% Number from finance

036 Vehicle Insurance
     01  Vehicle Insurance 2,356$                        2,419$            2,409$               2,395$                            2,419$                            2,409$                             2,409$                        100.0% 2,409$                            0.0% 0.0% Number from finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 497$                            516$                525$                  513$                               516$                               527$                                525$                            99.7% 593$                               12.5% 12.9% Number from finance

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                260$                                ‐$                            0.0% 271$                               4.4%

051 Equipment Maintenance
     01  Software
     05  Equipment Maintenance
068 Janitorial Services
     01 Janitorial Services ‐$                           

071 Radio Maintenance
     03  Radio Maintenance

073 Vehicle Repair
     01 Vehicle Repair ‐$                           

074 Tires
     01  Tires ‐$                           

075 Gas/Oil/Filters
     01  Gas/Oil/Filters 121$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   40$                                 ‐$                                132$                                ‐$                            0.0% 132$                               0.0%

078 Field Expenses
     01  Field Expenses ‐$                           

108  CEM Rent
     01  CEM Rent
Totals 12,795$                      13,089$          13,654$             13,179$                         13,089$                          15,616$                          11,632$                      74.5% 14,130$                          ‐9.5% 21.5%

39 Emergency Management (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

97



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

40 Public Works
001  Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 600,660$                    646,852$        653,183$          633,565$                       646,852$                       680,815$                        653,183$                    95.9% 799,010$                       17.4% 22.3% Number from finance
     02  Overtime 84,250$                      71,026$          108,389$          87,888$                         71,026$                          110,000$                        108,389$                    98.5% 142,000$                       29.1% 31.0% Number from finance
     07  Salaries

003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage 86$                              52$                  350$                  163$                               52$                                  50$                                  350$                            700.4% 50$                                  0.0% ‐85.7%
     02  Advertising 525$                            672$                684$                  627$                               672$                               300$                                684$                            228.0% 300$                               0.0% ‐56.1%
     05  Printer Ink
     07  Paper 35$                              ‐$                 45$                     27$                                 ‐$                                30$                                  45$                              150.0% 40$                                  33.3% ‐11.1%
     08  Office Supplies 168$                            198$                31$                     132$                               198$                               250$                                31$                              12.3% 250$                               0.0% 714.3%
     11 Equipment Rental 935$                            928$                937$                  933$                               928$                               900$                                937$                            104.1% 900$                               0.0% ‐3.9%
     12 Software 840$                            840$                840$                  840$                               840$                               650$                                840$                            129.2% 700$                               7.7% ‐16.7%

010 Travel Expenses
     02  Meal & Lodging 122$                            ‐$                 299$                  140$                               ‐$                                200$                                299$                            149.5% 300$                               50.0% 0.3%
     05  Travel Expenses 239$                            200$                131$                  190$                               200$                               200$                                131$                            65.7% 300$                               50.0% 128.3%

011 Training & Education
     02  Training & Education 124$                            300$                150$                  191$                               300$                               300$                                150$                            50.0% 300$                               0.0% 100.0%

014 New Equipment
     01  New Equipment 3,500$                        2,730$            3,499$               3,243$                            2,730$                            3,500$                             3,499$                        100.0% 3,500$                            0.0% 0.0%
     02  Office
    03  Shop

015 Telephone
     01  Cell Phone  720$                            720$                720$                  720$                               720$                               720$                                720$                            100.0% 720$                               0.0% 0.0%
     04  Telephone 1,144$                        1,062$            1,061$               1,089$                            1,062$                            1,100$                             1,061$                        96.5% 1,100$                            0.0% 3.7%

017 Communications
     03  Internet 539$                            539$                539$                  539$                               539$                               540$                                539$                            99.9% 540$                               0.0% 0.1%

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 258,529$                    227,290$        220,076$          235,299$                       227,290$                       210,344$                        220,076$                    104.6% 262,131$                       24.6% 19.1% Number from finance

019 Misc. Expense
     01  Misc. Expense 1,344$                        1,281$            1,670$               1,432$                            1,281$                            1,250$                             1,670$                        133.6% 1,500$                            20.0% ‐10.2%

026 Heating Fuel
     03  Heating Fuel 11,275$                      12,408$          15,524$             13,069$                         12,408$                          15,000$                          15,524$                      103.5% 16,000$                          6.7% 3.1%

027 Electricity
     01  P.W. Main Garage 9,533$                        10,474$          12,979$             10,995$                         10,474$                          13,092$                          12,979$                      99.1% 13,500$                          3.1% 4.0%
     02  P.W. Cold Storage 444$                            481$                595$                  507$                               481$                               602$                                595$                            98.8% 650$                               8.0% 9.3%
     03  P.W. Sand Dome 293$                            285$                319$                  299$                               285$                               356$                                319$                            89.6% 356$                               0.0% 11.6%
     04  P.W. Outside Lights 217$                            231$                270$                  239$                               231$                               288$                                270$                            93.5% 288$                               ‐0.1% 6.8%
     11  Electricity 355$                            377$                522$                  418$                               377$                               471$                                522$                            110.9% 525$                               11.5% 0.6%
     12  P.W. Pump House 369$                            451$                500$                  440$                               451$                               564$                                500$                            88.6% 550$                               ‐2.5% 10.0%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

98



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

40 Public Works (continued)
028 Water
     05  Water 1,488$                        1,524$            1,730$               1,581$                            1,524$                            1,585$                             1,730$                        109.1% 1,834$                            15.7% 6.0% increase of 6.17%
029 Sewer
     01  Sewer 481$                            508$                663$                  551$                               508$                               518$                                663$                            128.1% 676$                               30.6% 2.0% increase of 2.00%

030 Building Supplies
     01  Building Supplies 549$                            964$                864$                  792$                               964$                               900$                                864$                            96.0% 900$                               0.0% 4.2%

031 Building Maintenance
     01  Building Maintenance 5,227$                        5,055$            4,926$               5,069$                            5,055$                            5,000$                             4,926$                        98.5% 5,000$                            0.0% 1.5%

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance 2,678$                        2,764$            2,880$               2,774$                            2,764$                            2,819$                             2,880$                        102.2% 2,848$                            1.0% ‐1.1% Number from finance

034 Worker's Compensation
     01  Worker's Compensation 42,243$                      35,238$          31,443$             36,308$                         35,238$                          31,443$                          31,443$                      100.0% 28,672$                          ‐8.8% ‐8.8% Number from finance

036 Vehicle Insurance
     01  Vehicle Insurance 26,134$                      26,761$          27,503$             26,799$                         26,761$                          26,716$                          27,503$                      102.9% 28,289$                          5.9% 2.9% Number from finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 49,409$                      55,235$          55,187$             53,277$                         55,235$                          59,558$                          55,187$                      92.7% 71,987$                          20.9% 30.4% Number from finance

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement 9,611$                        8,871$            11,930$             10,137$                         8,871$                            12,000$                          11,930$                      99.4% 12,500$                          4.2% 4.8% Number from finance

(reflects actual participation)
051 Equipment Maintenance
     01  Software 53$                             
     05 Equipment Maintenance 155,896$                    173,168$        160,346$          163,137$                       173,168$                       163,125$                        160,346$                    98.3% 163,000$                       ‐0.1% 1.7%
     06 Air Compressor
     08  Snow Plow repairs  14,328$                      12,588$          14,185$             13,701$                         12,588$                          14,062$                          14,185$                      100.9% 14,000$                          ‐0.4% ‐1.3%

070 Clothing Allowance
     03  Clothing 4,060$                        4,815$            4,648$               4,508$                            4,815$                            5,600$                             4,648$                        83.0% 6,000$                            7.1% 29.1%
     04  Boots 1,663$                        2,148$            2,566$               2,126$                            2,148$                            2,200$                             2,566$                        116.6% 2,200$                            0.0% ‐14.3%
     06  Clothing Allowance

071 Radio Maintenance
     01  Vehicle ‐$                            700$                180$                  293$                               700$                               700$                                180$                            25.7% 700$                               0.0% 289.2%
     03  Radio Maintenance 99$                              122$                ‐$                   74$                                 122$                               150$                                ‐$                            0.0% 150$                               0.0% #DIV/0!

074 Tires
     01  Tires others 1,335$                        1,200$            1,536$               1,357$                            1,200$                            1,536$                             1,536$                        100.0% 1,500$                            ‐2.3% ‐2.3%
     03  Heavy Equipment 4,800$                        4,894$            6,144$               5,279$                            4,894$                            6,144$                             6,144$                        100.0% 6,000$                            ‐2.3% ‐2.3%
     04  Trucks 8,021$                        7,200$            9,216$               8,146$                            7,200$                            9,216$                             9,216$                        100.0% 9,200$                            ‐0.2% ‐0.2%

075 Gas/Oil/Filters
     01  Gas/Oil/Filters 6,083$                        7,122$            11,454$             8,220$                            7,122$                            11,054$                          11,454$                      103.6% 12,000$                          8.6% 4.8%

2023

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022

2023 Draft Expense Budget

99



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

076 Diesel Fuel
     01  Diesel 64,936$                      69,905$          140,742$          91,861$                         69,905$                          161,563$                        140,742$                    87.1% 135,000$                       ‐16.4% ‐4.1%
109 Safety Material
     01  Safety Material 2,262$                        2,244$            2,422$               2,309$                            2,244$                            2,500$                             2,422$                        96.9% 2,500$                            0.0% 3.2%
110 Equipment Rental
     01  Equipment Rental

111 Tools ‐ Shop
     01  Tools ‐ Shop 1,779$                        1,497$            1,724$               1,667$                            1,497$                            1,750$                             1,724$                        98.5% 1,750$                            0.0% 1.5%

112 Tools‐Road/Ground
     01  Tools ‐ Road/Ground 974$                            1,340$            1,227$               1,180$                            1,340$                            1,250$                             1,227$                        98.2% 1,250$                            0.0% 1.9%

113 Propane
     01  Propane ‐$                   ‐$                                150$                                ‐$                            0.0% 100$                               ‐33.3% #DIV/0!

114 Industrial Gas/Solvent
     01  Ind. Gas 1,694$                        1,700$            1,577$               1,657$                            1,700$                            1,700$                             1,577$                        92.8% 1,700$                            0.0% 7.8%
     02  Solvents/Cleaners

115 Lubricants
     01  Lubricants 13,927$                      13,074$          14,906$             13,969$                         13,074$                          13,800$                          14,906$                      108.0% 15,000$                          8.7% 0.6%

116 Salt & Calcium
     01  Rock Salt 111,557$                    100,580$        161,732$          124,623$                       100,580$                       144,500$                        161,732$                    111.9% 149,600$                       3.5% ‐7.5% 1700 tons @ $88
     02  Liquid Deicer 19,366$                      33,623$          38,495$             30,495$                         33,623$                          38,810$                          38,495$                      99.2% 41,000$                          5.6% 6.5% 4 loads @ $2.25 P/G

117 Gravel
     01  Gravel ‐$                            2,982$            3,961$               2,314$                            2,982$                            3,000$                             3,961$                        132.0% 3,500$                            16.7% ‐11.6%

118 Crushed Stone
     01  Crushed Stone 26,000$                     

119 Liquid Asphalt
     01  Liquid Asphalt ‐$                           

120 Shim and Patch
     01  Shim/Paver 41,107$                      42,114$          41,199$             41,473$                         42,114$                          48,355$                          41,199$                      85.2% 48,500$                          0.3% 17.7% Price Increase $105 per ton
     02  Patch 16,000$                      19,099$          24,429$             19,843$                         19,099$                          19,380$                          24,429$                      126.1% 20,000$                          3.2% ‐18.1% Price Increase $105 per ton

121 Asphalt

     01  Asphalt 378,848$                    400,000$        524,526$          434,458$                       400,000$                       524,526$                        524,526$                    100.0% 557,000$                       6.2% 6.2%
Town 2710 ton @ $105/ton & 
Country 2587 ton @ $105/ton

122 Culverts & Guard Rails
     01  Culverts & Guard Rails 8,428$                        7,892$            13,331$             9,884$                            7,892$                            15,600$                          13,331$                      85.5% 12,000$                          ‐23.1% ‐10.0%

123 Signs
     01  Signs 2,157$                        1,507$            2,373$               2,012$                            1,507$                            1,920$                             2,373$                        123.6% 3,000$                            56.3% 26.4% Need new software / equipment

40 Public Works (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

100



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

124 Sidewalks
     01  Sidewalks 3,000$                        3,623$            3,000$               3,208$                            3,623$                            3,000$                             3,000$                        100.0% 3,000$                            0.0% 0.0%

126 Traffic Paint
     01  Traffic Paint 10,621$                      11,160$          17,632$             13,137$                         11,160$                          18,000$                          17,632$                      98.0% 18,000$                          0.0% 2.1%
127 Vehicle Paint
     01  Vehicle Paint 2,573$                        2,898$            2,201$               2,557$                            2,898$                            2,500$                             2,201$                        88.1% 2,500$                            0.0% 13.6%

130 Construction Material
     01  Construction Material 1,872$                        2,736$            4,840$               3,149$                            2,736$                            3,304$                             4,840$                        146.5% 4,500$                            36.2% ‐7.0%

131 Sand Account  
     01  Sand Account 42,400$                      42,400$          65,000$             49,933$                         42,400$                          65,000$                          65,000$                      100.0% 67,500$                          3.8% 3.8% 4500 yd@ $15 (price increase)

132 Municipal Maintenance
     01  Municipal Maintenance 7,150$                        8,000$            7,576$               7,575$                            8,000$                            8,000$                             7,576$                        94.7% 8,000$                            0.0% 5.6% Mostly weed spraying

133  Tools Insurance
     01  Tools Insurance

134 Drug/Alcohol Testing
     01  Drug/Alcohol Testing 1,109$                        650$                815$                  858$                               650$                               900$                                815$                            90.6% 900$                               0.0% 10.4%

 
271 Contracted Services 
     01 Janitorial & Supplies
Totals 2,068,165$                2,105,362$    2,450,487$       2,208,005$                    2,105,362$                    2,481,422$                     2,444,421$                98.5% 2,709,266$                    9.2% 10.8%

40 Public Works (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

101



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

50 Recreation
001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 196,120$                    203,368$        205,282$          201,590$                       203,368$                       226,827$                        205,282$                    90.5% 251,410$                       10.8% 22.5% Number from Finance
     02  Overtime
     07  Salaries 68,045$                      80,773$          94,118$             80,979$                         80,773$                          90,000$                          94,118$                      104.6% 95,000$                          5.6% 0.9% Number from Finance

003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage 220$                            110$                236$                  189$                               110$                               250$                                236$                            94.4% 300$                               20.0% 27.1%  
     02  Advertising 778$                            1,526$            1,642$               1,315$                            1,526$                            1,500$                             1,642$                        109.5% 2,000$                            33.3% 21.8%
     03  Copier Rental 1,560$                        1,560$            520$                  1,213$                            1,560$                            1,560$                             520$                            33.3% 1,560$                            0.0% 200.0%
     04  Equipment Repair ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                150$                                ‐$                            0.0% 150$                               0.0% #DIV/0!
     05  Printer Ink 159$                            68$                  22$                     83$                                 68$                                  100$                                22$                              22.4% 100$                               0.0% 346.8%
     07  Paper 147$                            107$                140$                  131$                               107$                               250$                                140$                            56.0% 250$                               0.0% 78.7%
     08  Office Supplies 634$                            418$                974$                  676$                               418$                               1,000$                             974$                            97.4% 1,000$                            0.0% 2.6%

008 Computer Maintenance
     01  Computer Maintenance 1,134$                        840$                1,013$               996$                               840$                               840$                                1,013$                        120.6% 950$                               13.1% ‐6.2%

009 Professional Dues
     04  Professional Dues 255$                            255$                295$                  268$                               255$                               225$                                295$                            131.1% 355$                               57.8% 20.3%

010 Travel Expenses
     01 Mileage  ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                150$                                ‐$                            0.0% 150$                               0.0% #DIV/0!
     02  Meals & Lodging ‐$                            ‐$                 570$                  190$                               ‐$                                300$                                570$                            190.0% 500$                               66.7% ‐12.3%
     04  Conference Fee ‐$                            ‐$                 200$                  67$                                 ‐$                                200$                                200$                            100.0% 200$                               0.0% 0.0%
     05  Travel Expenses ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                200$                                ‐$                            0.0% 200$                               0.0% #DIV/0!

011 Training & Education
     02 Training & Education ‐$                            319$                75$                     131$                               319$                               500$                                75$                              15.0% 500$                               0.0% 566.7%

013 Car Allowance
     01  Car Allowance 3,200$                        3,262$            3,500$               3,321$                            3,262$                            3,500$                             3,500$                        100.0% 3,500$                            0.0% 0.0%

015 Telephone
     01  Cell Phone
     02  Rec Center 2,139$                        2,362$            2,354$               2,285$                            2,362$                            2,400$                             2,354$                        98.1% 2,400$                            0.0% 2.0%
     04  Telephone 56$                              ‐$                 723$                  260$                               ‐$                                400$                                723$                            180.7% 780$                               95.0% 7.9%

017 Internet
     03  Internet 1,070$                        1,166$            1,207$               1,148$                            1,166$                            1,200$                             1,207$                        100.6% 1,200$                            0.0% ‐0.6%

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 67,030$                      70,572$          78,666$             72,089$                         70,572$                          79,409$                          78,666$                      99.1% 83,596$                          5.3% 6.3% Number from Finance

026 Heating Fuel
     01  Recreation Center 13,969$                      17,313$          30,666$             20,649$                         17,313$                          23,892$                          30,666$                      128.4% 49,500$                          107.2% 61.4%
     02  Teague Park
     03  Heating Fuel

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

102



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

027 Electricity
     05  Recreation Center 19,251$                      21,504$          26,182$             22,312$                         21,504$                          26,880$                          26,182$                      97.4% 36,000$                          33.9% 37.5%
     06  Teague Park 509$                            1,901$            3,523$               1,978$                            1,901$                            2,376$                             3,523$                        148.3% 12,500$                          426.1% 254.8%
     07  Soucy Sports Complex 386$                            677$                1,127$               730$                               677$                               1,057$                             1,127$                        106.6% 3,500$                            231.1% 210.6%
     08  Pool
028 Water
     01  Recreation Center 1,351$                        6,477$            9,605$               5,811$                            6,477$                            13,000$                          9,605$                        73.9% 13,000$                          0.0% 35.3% increase 6.17%
     02  Teague Park ‐$                            230$                284$                  171$                               230$                               300$                                284$                            94.7% 300$                               0.0% 5.6% increase 6.17%
    03   Dog Park 134$                  134$                               200$                                134$                            66.9% 200$                               0.0% 49.6% increase 6.17%
     04  Soucy Complex 75$                              321$                137$                  178$                               321$                               120$                                137$                            114.3% 120$                               0.0% ‐12.5% increase 6.17%

029 Sewer
     01  Sewer 327$                            511$                276$                  371$                               511$                               700$                                276$                            39.4% 700$                               0.0% 153.8% increase 2.00%

030 Building Supplies
     01  Building Supplies 3,875$                        3,623$            3,922$               3,807$                            3,623$                            3,800$                             3,922$                        103.2% 3,800$                            0.0% ‐3.1%

031 Building Maintenance
     01  Building Maintenance 31,847$                      40,789$          31,957$             34,865$                         40,789$                          35,650$                          31,957$                      89.6% 36,000$                          1.0% 12.6%

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance 5,737$                        5,660$            5,958$               5,785$                            5,660$                            5,613$                             5,958$                        106.1% 6,303$                            12.3% 5.8% Number from Finance

034 Worker's Compensation
     01  Worker's Compensation 9,179$                        10,209$          7,224$               8,871$                            10,209$                          2,750$                             7,224$                        262.7% 5,284$                            92.2% ‐26.8% Number from Finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 19,937$                      21,284$          22,238$             21,153$                         21,284$                          23,472$                          22,238$                      94.7% 26,500$                          12.9% 19.2% Number from Finance

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement 7,155$                        7,347$            7,556$               7,353$                            7,347$                            7,345$                             7,556$                        102.9% 8,157$                            11.0% 7.9% Number from Finance

051 Equipment Maintenance
     01  Equip Maint
     04  Repairs
     05 Equipment Maintenance ‐$                            487$                ‐$                   162$                               487$                              

073 Vehicle Repair
     01 Vehicle Repair

075 Gas/Oil/Filters
     01  Gas/Oil/Filters ‐$                            50$                  97$                     49$                                 50$                                  97$                             

135 Water Tests
     01 Water Tests ‐$                           

50 Recreation (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

103



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

136 Youth Center Equipment
     01  Youth Center Equipment

137 Rink Equipment
     01  Rink Equipment 584$                            448$                834$                  622$                               448$                               800$                                834$                            104.3% 800$                               0.0% ‐4.1%

138 Program Equipment
     01 Baseball/Softball 578$                            478$                126$                  394$                               478$                               600$                                126$                            21.0% 600$                               0.0% 376.3%
     02  Tennis 310$                            200$                ‐$                   170$                               200$                               200$                                ‐$                            0.0% 200$                               0.0%
     03  Soccer 228$                            734$                559$                  507$                               734$                               600$                                559$                            93.2% 600$                               0.0% 7.4%
     04  Basketball 88$                              ‐$                 36$                     41$                                 ‐$                                200$                                36$                              17.9% 200$                               0.0% 458.7%
     05  Arts & Crafts 200$                               NEW
     06  Program Equipment 1,983$                        1,652$            1,641$               1,759$                            1,652$                            1,800$                             1,641$                        91.2% 1,800$                            0.0% 9.7%
139 Rink Maintenance
     01  Rink Maintenance ‐$                            287$                ‐$                   96$                                 287$                               ‐$                                

140 Pool Supplies
     01  Pool Supplies 300$                            500$                ‐$                   267$                               500$                               900$                                ‐$                            0.0% 900$                               0.0%

141 Trophies & Awards
     01  Trophies & Awards 43$                              366$                286$                  231$                               366$                               400$                                286$                            71.5% 400$                               0.0% 39.9%

142 Pool Maintenance
     01  Pool Maintenance 400$                            400$                ‐$                   267$                               400$                               ‐$                                

145 Special Events ‐$                            117$                ‐$                   39$                                 117$                              
     01  Special Events 1,237$                        2,851$            2,798$               2,295$                            2,851$                            3,000$                             2,798$                        93.3% 3,000$                            0.0% 7.2%
243 Rec Center Improvement
Totals 461,895$                517,163$     552,748$        510,602$                       517,163$                   570,660$                        548,704$                    96.2% 656,665$                       15.1% 19.7%

50 Recreation (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

104



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 45,009$                      46,535$          41,157$             44,233$                         46,535$                          46,738$                          41,157$                      88.1% 51,916$                          11.1% 26.1% Number from Finance
     02  Overtime 3,256$                        3,579$            2,528$               3,121$                            3,579$                            5,000$                             2,528$                        50.6% 4,000$                            ‐20.0% 58.2% Number from Finance
     07  Salaries 38,226$                      34,579$          37,270$             36,692$                         34,579$                          36,316$                          37,270$                      102.6% 39,213$                          8.0% 5.2% Number from Finance

014 New Equipment
     01  New Equipment 1,534$                        1,322$            1,197$               1,351$                            1,322$                            1,200$                             1,197$                        99.7% 1,200$                            0.0% 0.3%

015 Telephone
     01  Cell Phone
     04  Telephone 583$                            628$                818$                  676$                               628$                               650$                                818$                            125.8% 820$                               26.2% 0.3%

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 11,392$                      164$                12,117$             7,891$                            164$                               12,118$                          12,117$                      100.0% 12,118$                          0.0% 0.0% Number from Finance

019 Misc. Expense
     01 Misc. Expense

026 Heating Fuel
     03  Heating Fuel 4,675$                        3,978$            8,316$               5,656$                            3,978$                            6,000$                             8,316$                        138.6% 12,000$                          100.0% 44.3%

027 Electricity
     01  PW MAIN GAR
     09  Park Shop 1,375$                        1,516$            1,834$               1,575$                            1,516$                            1,895$                             1,834$                        96.8% 6,500$                            243.1% 254.4%
     10  Park Security Lighting 199$                            207$                205$                  204$                               207$                               259$                                205$                            79.2% 1,200$                            362.7% 484.5%
     11  Electricity 201$                            237$                252$                  230$                               237$                               296$                                252$                            85.1% 1,200$                            305.3% 376.2%

029 Sewer
     01  Sewer 250$                            254$                256$                  253$                               254$                               300$                                256$                            85.3% 300$                               0.0% 17.3% increase of 2.00%

030 Building Supplies
     01  Building Supplies 1,827$                        1,929$            2,263$               2,006$                            1,929$                            2,500$                             2,263$                        90.5% 2,500$                            0.0% 10.5%

031 Building Maintenance
     01  Building Maintenance 2,575$                        841$                2,951$               2,123$                            841$                               3,600$                             2,951$                        82.0% 3,200$                            ‐11.1% 8.4%

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance

034 Workers Comp
     01  Workers Comp 2,770$                        2,239$            2,145$               2,385$                            2,239$                            475$                                2,145$                        451.7% 2,550$                            436.8% 18.9% Number from Finance

036 Vehicle Insurance
     01  Vehicle Insurance 4,382$                        4,500$            4,583$               4,489$                            4,500$                            4,504$                             4,583$                        101.8% 4,663$                            3.5% 1.7% Number from Finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 6,389$                        6,497$            6,026$               6,304$                            6,497$                            6,583$                             6,026$                        91.5% 7,277$                            10.5% 20.8% Number from Finance

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement 440$                            1,060$            580$                  693$                               1,060$                            1,040$                             580$                            55.8% 1,040$                            0.0% 79.3% Number from Finance

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

51 Parks

2023 Draft Expense Budget

105



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

051 Equipment Maintenance
     04  Repairs 1,754$                        1,790$            1,565$               1,703$                            1,790$                            1,800$                             1,565$                        87.0% 1,800$                            0.0% 15.0%
     05  Equipment Maintenance 15,412$                      5,833$            5,108$               8,784$                            5,833$                            6,000$                             5,108$                        85.1% 6,000$                            0.0% 17.5%
070 Clothing Allowance
     03 Clothing 381$                            435$                491$                  436$                               435$                               500$                                491$                            98.2% 500$                               0.0% 1.8%

073 Vehicle Repairs
     01 Vehicle Repairs 5,168$                        4,818$            6,684$               5,557$                            4,818$                            5,000$                             6,684$                        133.7% 7,000$                            40.0% 4.7%

074 Tires
     01 Tires 1,411$                        1,529$            915$                  1,285$                            1,529$                            1,500$                             915$                            61.0% 1,200$                            ‐20.0% 31.1%

075 Gas/Oil/Filters
     01  Gas/Oil/Filters 4,221$                        6,675$            9,538$               6,811$                            6,675$                            8,343$                             9,538$                        114.3% 8,500$                            1.9% ‐10.9%

076 Diesel
     01 Diesel 917$                            8,010$            4,031$               4,319$                            8,010$                            10,013$                          4,031$                        40.3% 3,000$                            ‐70.0% ‐25.6%

111 Tools ‐ Shop
     01  Tools ‐ Shop 1,142$                        1,158$            1,165$               1,155$                            1,158$                            1,300$                             1,165$                        89.6% 1,300$                            0.0% 11.6%

147 Parks Maintenance
     01  Parks Maintenance 8,286$                        10,817$          14,986$             11,363$                         10,817$                          15,000$                          14,986$                      99.9% 15,000$                          0.0% 0.1%
    02 Civic Beautification

237 Civic Beaut  
     01  Civic Beaut 5,919$                        2,559$            2,595$               3,691$                            2,559$                            3,000$                             2,595$                        86.5% 3,000$                            0.0% 15.6%
Totals 171,715$                    155,710$        173,598$          167,008$                       155,710$                       183,952$                        171,576$                    93.3% 198,997$                       8.2% 16.0%

51 Parks (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

106



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay ‐$                            ‐$                               

008 Computer Maintenance
     04  Computer Maintenance

015 Telephone
     04  Telephone 847$                            970$                970$                  929$                               970$                               900$                                970$                            107.8% 1,000$                            11.1% 3.1%

017 Communications
     03  Internet 659$                            659$                617$                  689$                               659$                               750$                                617$                            82.2% 750$                               0.0% 21.6%

019 Miscellaneous Expense
     01  Misc. Expense 120$                            126$                272$                  124$                               126$                               150$                                272$                            181.7% 300$                               100.0% 10.1%

026 Heating Fuel
     03  Heating Fuel 6,699$                        8,227$            8,096$               7,447$                            8,227$                            11,353$                          8,096$                        71.3% 11,500$                          1.3% 42.0%

027 Electricity
     11  Electricity 770$                            833$                1,140$               868$                               833$                               1,041$                             1,140$                        109.5% 1,200$                            15.3% 5.3%
     14  Airport Hangar 1,893$                        1,582$            2,248$               1,732$                            1,582$                            1,977$                             2,248$                        113.7% 2,300$                            16.3% 2.3%

028 Water
     05  Water 526$                            546$                906$                  533$                               546$                               568$                                906$                            159.6% 975$                               71.7% 7.6% increase 6.17%

029 Sewer
     01  Sewer 250$                            251$                456$                  250$                               251$                               300$                                456$                            151.9% 470$                               56.7% 3.1% increase 2.00%

030 Building Supplies
     01  Building Supplies ‐$                            74$                  ‐$                   25$                                 74$                                  100$                                ‐$                            0.0% 100$                               0.0%

031 Building Maintenance
     01  Building Maintenance 532$                            1,260$            2,788$               762$                               1,260$                            750$                                2,788$                        371.7% 2,500$                            233.3% ‐10.3%

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance 1,909$                        1,948$            1,922$               1,744$                            1,948$                            1,961$                             1,922$                        98.0% 1,883$                            ‐4.0% ‐2.0% Number From Finance

037 Liability Insurance
    01 Airport Liability  2,173$                        2,499$            2,499$               2,282$                            2,499$                            2,500$                             2,499$                        100.0% 2,500$                            0.0% 0.0% Number From Finance

038 Social Security
     01 Social Security 700$                            691$                1,101$               919$                               691$                               1,484$                             1,101$                        74.2% 1,300$                            ‐12.4% 18.1% Number From Finance

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement ‐$                            ‐$                                Number From Finance

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

60 Airport

2023 Draft Expense Budget

107



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

051 Equipment Maintenance
     05 Equipment Maintenance 4,325$                        8,395$            2,657$               5,036$                            8,395$                            5,000$                             2,657$                        53.1% 5,000$                            0.0% 88.2%

076 Diesel
    01 Diesel 2,720$                        3,078$            7,835$               3,872$                            3,078$                            7,317$                             7,835$                        107.1% 8,000$                            9.3% 2.1%

153 Air Consultant Contract
     01  Air Consultant Contract 3,700$                        3,975$            4,875$               5,592$                            3,975$                            5,200$                             4,875$                        93.8% 5,200$                            0.0% 6.7%
155 Snow Plowing
     01  Snow Plowing 5,708$                        5,329$            9,861$               6,966$                            5,329$                            15,484$                          9,861$                        63.7% 15,484$                          0.0% 57.0% Number From Finance

156 Runway Lights
     01  Runway Lights 759$                            1,558$            ‐$                   772$                               1,558$                            2,300$                             ‐$                            0.0% 2,000$                            ‐13.0%

157 Runway Maintenance
     01  Runway Maintenance 3,000$                        500$                2,512$               2,004$                            500$                               6,000$                             2,512$                        41.9% 4,000$                            ‐33.3% 59.2%

161  Garbage Coll
     01  Garbage Collection ‐$                                

420 AVGas
     01  AVGas 10,603$                      18,631$          35,000$             21,411$                         18,631$                          35,000$                          35,000$                      100.0% 35,000$                          0.0% 0.0% MOVE TO G ACCOUNT
Totals 47,894$                      63,154$          87,776$             66,274$                         63,154$                          102,157$                        85,754$                      83.9% 101,462$                       ‐0.7% 18.3%

60 Airport (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

108



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

61 Caribou Trailer Park
006 Legal Fees
     01  Legal Fees

027 Electricity
     11  Electricity 2,048$                        2,244$            3,719$               2,670$                            2,244$                            2,805$                             3,719$                        132.6% 3,900$                            39.0% 4.9%

028 Water
     05  Water 4,900$                        3,772$            5,956$               4,876$                            3,772$                            4,500$                             5,956$                        132.4% 6,000$                            33.3% 0.7% increase 6.17%

029 Sewer
     01  Sewer 3,000$                        2,638$            765$                  2,134$                            2,638$                            2,690$                             765$                            28.4% 900$                               ‐66.5% 17.6% increase 2.00%

032 Property Insurance
     01  Property Insurance 44$                              43$                  41$                     43$                                 43$                                  100$                                41$                              41.5% 40$                                  ‐60.0% ‐3.5% Number From Finance

105 Street Lights
     01  Street Lights ‐$                           

147 Park Maintenance
     01  Park Maintenance ‐$                 ‐$                                ‐$                                

158 CTP License Fee
     01  CTP License Fee 115$                            115$                115$                  115$                               115$                               115$                                115$                            100.0% 115$                               0.0% 0.0%

160  CTP Park Maintenance
     01  CTP Park Maintenance 772$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   257$                               ‐$                                1,000$                             ‐$                            0.0% 1,000$                            0.0%

161 Garbage Collection
     01  Garbage Collection 1,620$                        1,610$            1,470$               1,567$                            1,610$                            1,440$                             1,470$                        102.1% 1,500$                            4.2% 2.0%

385 Year End CTP
     01 Year End CTP 1,579$                        9,749$            583$                  3,970$                            9,749$                            583$                           
Totals 14,078$                      20,170$          12,650$             15,633$                         20,170$                          12,650$                          12,650$                      100.0% 13,455$                          6.4% 6.4%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

109



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

65 Cemeteries
165 Evergreen Cemetery
     01  Evergreen Cemetery 3,000$                        3,000$            3,000$               3,000$                            3,000$                            3,000$                             3,000$                        100.0% 3,000$                            0.0% 0.0%

166 Grimes Cemetery
     01  Grimes Cemetery 2,250$                        2,000$            2,000$               2,083$                            2,000$                            2,000$                             2,000$                        100.0% 2,000$                            0.0% 0.0%

167 Sacred Heart Cemetery
     01  Sacred Heart Cemetery 350$                            350$                350$                  350$                               350$                               350$                                350$                            100.0% 350$                               0.0% 0.0%

168 Holy Rosary Cemetery
     01  Holy Rosary Cemetery 350$                            350$                350$                  350$                               350$                               350$                                350$                            100.0% 350$                               0.0% 0.0%

169 Green Ridge Cemetery
     01  Green Ridge Cemetery 150$                            150$                150$                  150$                               150$                               150$                                150$                            100.0% 150$                               0.0% 0.0%

170 Lyndon Cemetery
     01  Lyndon Cemetery 300$                            300$                300$                  300$                               300$                               300$                                300$                            100.0% 300$                               0.0% 0.0%

171 Bubar Cemetery
     01  Bubar Cemetery 100$                            100$                100$                  100$                               100$                               100$                                100$                            100.0% 100$                               0.0% 0.0%

172 Memorial Day Flags
     01  Memorial Day Flags 600$                            479$                476$                  518$                               479$                               600$                                476$                            79.3% 600$                               0.0% 26.1%

190 Veterans Cemetery Fund
     01  Veterans Cemetery Fund ‐$                            ‐$                 6,726$               2,242$                           
Totals 7,100$                        6,729$            6,726$               6,852$                            6,729$                            6,850$                             6,726$                        98.2% 6,850$                            0.0% 1.8%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

110



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

70 Insurance and Retirements
007 Audit
     02 GASB 45 ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                3,200$                             ‐$                            0.0% 3,200$                            0.0%

018 Health Insurance
   01  Employee Assistance Prog ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                               

034 Worker's Compensation
     01  Worker's Compensation 5,117$                        ‐$                 ‐$                   1,706$                            ‐$                                3,616$                             ‐$                            0.0% 3,500$                            ‐3.2%

035 Unemployment Comp.
     01  Unemployment Comp. 17,130$                      33,217$          15,300$             21,882$                         33,217$                          17,839$                          15,300$                      85.8% 15,500$                          ‐13.1% 1.3%

037 Liability Insurance
     01  Liability Insurance 27,209$                      28,539$          29,431$             28,393$                         28,539$                          29,221$                          29,431$                      100.7% 29,642$                          1.4% 0.7% Number From Finance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security

039 Bonds
     01  Bonds

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement ‐$                            ‐$                 109$                  36$                                 109$                            110$                               NEW 1.3%

041 $1000 Ded. Payments
     01  $1000 Ded. Payments 906$                            1,500$            3,000$               1,802$                            1,500$                            3,000$                             3,000$                        100.0% 3,000$                            0.0% 0.0%

043 Compensated Absences
     01  Compensated Absences 25,000$                      25,000$          25,000$             25,000$                         25,000$                          25,000$                          25,000$                      100.0% 25,000$                          0.0% 0.0%

044 ‐ Reimbursements
     01  Reimbursements

046 Recognitions & Awards
    01  Recognitions & Awards 2,204$                        2,116$            3,047$               2,456$                            2,116$                            3,000$                             3,047$                        101.6% 4,000$                            33.3% 31.3%

311 Section 125 Expense
    01 Section 125 Expense 6,422$                        6,244$            6,158$               6,275$                            6,244$                            6,500$                             6,158$                        94.7% 6,500$                            0.0% 5.5%    
Totals 83,990$                      96,615$          82,045$             87,550$                         96,615$                          91,376$                          82,045$                      89.8% 90,452$                          ‐1.0% 10.2%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

111



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

75 Contributions
177 Aroost. Agency on Aging
     01  Aroost. Agency on Aging 4,600$                        4,600$            3,048$               4,083$                            4,600$                            4,600$                             4,600$                        100.0% 4,600$                            0.0% 0.0%  Request received for 2023 

176 ACAP
01 ACAP ‐$                            ‐$                 4,600$               1,533$                            3,048$                             3,048$                        100.0% 3,048$                            0.0% 0.0%  Request received for 2023 

Totals 4,600$                        4,600$            7,648$               5,616$                            4,600$                            7,648$                             7,648$                        100.0% 7,648$                            0.0% 0.0%

2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

80 Unclassified
038 Social Security

     01 Social Security 523.36 ‐$                                 523$                            500$                               NEW ‐4.5%

045 Refunds/Reimbursements
     01 Refunds/Reimbursements 8,641$                        270$                ‐$                   2,970$                            270$                               275$                                ‐$                            0.0% 275$                               0.0%

200 Tax Lien Costs
     01  Tax Lien Costs 17,593$                      14,320$          15,246$             15,720$                         14,320$                          17,500$                          15,246$                      87.1% 17,500$                          0.0% 14.8%

201 Abatements
     01  Abatements 12,301$                      13,135$          10,143$             11,860$                         13,135$                          13,500$                          10,143$                      75.1% 13,500$                          0.0% 33.1%

Totals 38,535$                      27,725$          25,912$             30,724$                         27,725$                          31,275$                          25,912$                      82.9% 31,775$                          1.6% 22.6%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

112



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay  111,858$                    85,300$          52,824$             83,327$                         85,300$                          91,224$                          52,824$                      57.9% 56,727$                          ‐37.8% 7.4%  Number From Finance 
     03 Overtime

003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage 1,000$                            NEW
     02 Advertising 3,360$                        3,018$            5,692$               4,023$                            3,018$                            5,000$                             5,692$                        113.8% 7,500$                            50.0% 31.8%
     04 Equipment Repair
     08 Office Supplies 377$                  0$                                     377$                            500$                               NEW 32.7%

005 General Govt. Legal Fees
     04 Legal Fees 1,090$                        1,090$                           

008 Computer Maintenance
     01 Computer Maintenance 64$                              165$                  115$                               0$                                     165$                            200$                               NEW 21.2%
     02 Hosted Services
     03 GIS License 700$                            700$                700$                  700$                               700$                               700$                                700$                            100.0% 700$                               0.0% 0.0%

009 Professional Dues
     01  Subscriptions 1,563$                        6,143$            1,255$               2,987$                            6,143$                            6,000$                             1,255$                        20.9% 4,000$                            ‐33.3% 218.7%
     04  Prof Dues 1,152$                        425$                  789$                               0$                                     425$                            1,000$                            NEW 135.3%

010 Travel Expenses
     01  Mileage ‐$                            586$                477$                  354$                               586$                               1,000$                             477$                            47.7% 2,500$                            150.0% 423.7%
     02  Meals & Lodging ‐$                            249$                1,397$               549$                               249$                               1,500$                             1,397$                        93.1% 3,000$                            100.0% 114.8%
     04 Conference Fees ‐$                            861$                1,467$               776$                               861$                               1,500$                             1,467$                        97.8% 3,000$                            100.0% 104.5%

011 Training and Education
     02 Training and Education 1,760$                        650$                109$                  840$                               650$                               1,500$                             109$                            7.3% 1,500$                            0.0% 1276.1%

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance 15,477$                      9,633$            7,866$               10,992$                         9,633$                            28,153$                          7,866$                        27.9% 8,392$                            ‐70.2% 6.7% Number From Finance

019 Miscellaneous Expenses
     01  Misc Expenses 33$                              31$                  ‐$                   21$                                 31$                                  250$                                ‐$                            0.0% 250$                               0.0%

031 Building Maintenance
    01 Building Maintenance

034 Workers Comp 206$                            151$                51$                     136$                               151$                               150$                                51$                              33.9% 190$                               26.7% 273.6%  Number From Finance 
     01  Workers Comp

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 8,455$                        6,593$            2,272$               5,773$                            6,593$                            6,359$                             2,272$                        35.7% 4,340$                            ‐31.8% 91.0%  Number From Finance 

040 City & State Retirement
     01  City & State Retirement ‐$                            ‐$                 1,142$               381$                               ‐$                                1,340$                             1,142$                        85.2% 1,806$                            34.8% 58.2%  Number From Finance 

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

11 Economic Development

2023 Draft Expense Budget

113



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

145 Special Events
    01 Special Events

238 Trail Groomer Reserve
    01 Trail Groomer Reserve 10,000$                      10,000$          10,000$             10,000$                         10,000$                          10,000$                          10,000$                      100.0% 10,000$                          0.0% 0.0%
280 Revolving Loan Fund
    01 Revolving Loan Fund 19,558$                     

281 Contracted Services
    01 Buxton Contract
     03  NMDC 13,553$                      13,464$          13,177$             13,398$                         13,464$                          13,177$                          13,177$                      100.0% 13,032$                          ‐1.1% ‐1.1%  Request received for 2023 
    04 Broadband Study
    02 Chamber 2,500$               2,500$                            2,500$                             2,500$                        100.0% 5,000$                            100.0% 100.0%  Increase for 2023 
   ## Social Media 5,200$                            NEW
   ## Website Upgrading 5,200$                            NEW
   ## Brownfields Tech Asst 7,000$                            NEW
   ##  Riverfront Plan 10,000$                          NEW  $40,000 requested 

385 ‐ Downtown Infrastructure
    01 Downtown Infrastructure 3,693$                        475$                5,040$               3,069$                            475$                               5,000$                             5,040$                        100.8% 7,500$                            50.0% 48.8%
  ## Business District Lights 10,000$                          NEW  Capital Project ‐ 4 year  

392 Ads & Marketing
     01 Video Ads & Marketing  2,500$                        2,500$            ‐$                   1,667$                            2,500$                            ‐$                                 ‐$                            2,500$                            NEW Visit Caribou

394 Community Projects
     01 Project Exp
     08 Winter Carnival 477$                            ‐$                 2,175$               884$                               ‐$                                3,500$                             2,175$                        62.1% 3,500$                            0.0% 60.9%  now with SnowBowl 
     14 Thursday's On Sweden ‐$                            7,512$            8,728$               5,414$                            7,512$                            13,000$                          8,728$                        67.1% 10,000$                          ‐23.1% 14.6%  Have sponsorships for 2023 too 
     15 Heritage Days
     16 Caribou Days ‐$                            3,224$            1,300$               1,508$                            3,224$                            5,000$                             1,300$                        26.0% 1,500$                            ‐70.0% 15.4%
     17 Moose Lottery
     18 New Years Eve
     20 Miscellaneous 2,070$                        1,932$            2,645$               2,216$                            1,932$                            2,000$                             2,645$                        132.3% 2,000$                            0.0% ‐24.4%
     21 New Events 3,000$                        1,228$            5,863$               3,364$                            1,228$                            5,000$                             5,863$                        117.3% 4,000$                            ‐20.0% ‐31.8%
  ## Caribou Cares 5,000$                            NEW  Grew in 2022 
  ## Small Business Saturday 5,000$                            NEW  Moving to own line 

405 Slum/Blight Removal
    01 Slum/Blight Removal 49,488$                      87,401$          84,486$             73,792$                         87,401$                          65,000$                          84,486$                      130.0% 65,000$                          0.0% ‐23.1%
    02 Landbank Seed 3,061$            ‐$                   1,531$                            3,061$                            20,000$                          ‐$                            0.0% 20,000$                          0.0%

411 Façade Improvement
    01 Façade Improvement 15,420$                      15,874$          19,802$             17,032$                         15,874$                          20,000$                          19,802$                      99.0% 20,000$                          0.0% 1.0%

413 New Fire Station
    01 New Fire Station 36,945$                     
Totals 302,421$                262,607$     233,956$        266,328$                   262,607$                   310,875$                        231,934$                    74.6% 308,037$                       ‐0.9% 32.8%

11 Economic Development (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

114



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 53,526$                      55,419$          55,415$             54,787$                         55,419$                          55,688$                          55,415$                      99.5% 64,430$                          15.7% 16.3%  Number From Finance 
    11  Part‐Time ‐$                   15,600$                          ‐$                            0.0% 15,600$                          0.0%
    10 Finance Dept tasks 4,984$               5,981$                             4,984$                        83.3% 5,971$                            ‐0.2% 19.8%

003 Office Supplies
     01  Postage  3,676$                        3,294$            2,894$               3,288$                            3,294$                            2,200$                             2,894$                        131.6% 2,600$                            18.2% ‐10.2%
     02 Advertising 814$                ‐$                   814$                               300$                                ‐$                            0.0% 400$                               33.3%
     03 Copier Rental 1,731$                        1,909$            2,135$               1,925$                            1,909$                            2,000$                             2,135$                        106.8% 2,000$                            0.0% ‐6.3%
     05  Printer Ink 142$                            ‐$                 145$                  96$                                 ‐$                                200$                                145$                            72.4% 200$                               0.0% 38.1%
     07 Paper 183$                            445$                298$                  308$                               445$                               300$                                298$                            99.2% 450$                               50.0% 51.2%
     08 Office Supplies 3,175$                        3,621$            2,126$               2,974$                            3,621$                            1,000$                             2,126$                        212.6% 1,750$                            75.0% ‐17.7%
     12 Software 13,988$                      15,609$          17,583$             15,727$                         15,609$                          14,000$                          17,583$                      125.6% 15,000$                          7.1% ‐14.7%

005 General Govt. Legal Fees
     04 Legal Fees 4,670$                        60$                  844$                  1,858$                            60$                                  3,500$                             844$                            24.1% 3,500$                            0.0% 314.8%

007 Audit
     01 Audit ‐$                            ‐$                 1,500$               500$                               ‐$                                1,500$                             1,500$                        100.0% 2,000$                            33.3% 33.3%

008 Computer Maintenance
     01 Oak Leaf ‐$                            840$                840$                  560$                               840$                               840$                                840$                            100.0% 840$                               0.0% 0.0%

009 Professional Dues
     01  Subscriptions 532$                            640$                557$                  577$                               640$                               550$                                557$                            101.3% 600$                               9.1% 7.7%
     04 Professional Dues 800$                            500$                500$                  600$                               500$                               800$                                500$                            62.5% 800$                               0.0% 60.0%

010 Travel Expenses
     01  Mileage 159$                            508$                467$                  378$                               508$                               300$                                467$                            155.5% 600$                               100.0% 28.6%
     02  Meals & Lodging ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                500$                                ‐$                            0.0% 2,000$                            300.0%
     04  Conference Fees
     05  Travel Expenses ‐$                            ‐$                 206$                  69$                                 ‐$                                200$                                206$                            103.0% 500$                               150.0% 142.7%

011 Training and Education
     02 Training and Education 1,328$                        1,669$            1,052$               1,350$                            1,669$                            1,500$                             1,052$                        70.1% 3,000$                            100.0% 185.2%

014 ‐ New Equipment
     01  New Equipment 1,684$                        1,600$            120$                  1,135$                            1,600$                            500$                                120$                            24.0% 1,000$                            100.0% 733.3%
     02 Office 600$                600$                              

015 Telephone
     04 Telephone 462$                            395$                394$                  417$                               395$                               1,200$                             394$                            32.8% 400$                               ‐66.7% 1.5%

017 Communications
     03  Communications ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                306$                                ‐$                            0.0% 306$                               0.0%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

24 Housing

2023 Draft Expense Budget

115



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

018 Health Insurance
     01  Health Insurance Housing 2,786$                        2,838$            3,023$               2,882$                            2,838$                            2,825$                             3,023$                        107.0% 2,983$                            5.6% ‐1.3% Number From Finance
     02 Health Ins. Stipend FSS

034‐Workers Comp
       01‐Workers Comp Housing 177$                            156$                154$                  162$                               156$                               185$                                154$                            83.3% 165$                               ‐10.8% 7.1% Number From Finance
       01‐Workers Comp FSS
 035‐Unemployment
        01‐Unemployment Housing 295$                            323$                324$                  314$                               323$                               315$                                324$                            102.9% 315$                               0.0% ‐2.8%  Number From Finance 
        01‐Unemployment FSS

 038‐Social Security
        01‐Social Security Housing 4,449$                        4,598$            4,612$               4,553$                            4,598$                            4,260$                             4,612$                        108.3% 4,929$                            15.7% 6.9%  Number from Finance 

        01‐Social Security FSS 1,200$                            NEW  This would be SS on PT Employee 

040 City & State Retirement
        01‐Retirement Housing 1,983$                        2,032$            2,038$               2,018$                            2,032$                            1,949$                             2,038$                        104.6% 2,255$                            15.7% 10.6%  Number from Finance 

285 Year End Closing
       01‐Year End Closing

412 ‐ Fee Accountant
     01 ‐ Fee Acountant 5,398$                        8,245$            5,670$               6,438$                            8,245$                            7,000$                             5,670$                        81.0% 7,000$                            0.0% 23.5%
Totals 101,143$                108,135$     109,902$        106,394$                   108,135$                   127,521$                        107,880$                    84.6% 142,794$                       12.0% 32.4%

24 Housing (continued)

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

116



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

52 Snow Trail Maintenance
001 Salaries
     01  Regular Pay 15,272$                      8,080$            17,512$             13,621$                         8,080$                            16,640$                          17,512$                      105.2% 17,200$                          3.4% ‐1.8%  Number from finance 
     02  Overtime
     07  Salaries

015 Telephone
     01  Cell Phone 511$                            346$                86$                     314$                               346$                               ‐$                                 86$                              ‐$                                ‐100.0%
     04  Telephone

019 Misc. Expense
     01 Misc. Expense 231$                            3,667$            558$                  1,485$                            3,667$                            3,000$                             558$                            18.6% 3,000$                            0.0% 437.6%

034 Work Comp
     01  Work Comp 476$                            176$                470$                  374$                               176$                               475$                                470$                            98.9% 445$                               ‐6.3% ‐5.3% Number from finance

035 Unemployment
     01  Unemployment 376$                            196$                456$                  343$                               196$                               350$                                456$                            130.4% 450$                               28.6% ‐1.4%  Number from finance 

036 Vehicle Insurance
     01  Vehicle Insurance

038 Social Security
     01  Social Security 1,168$                        618$                1,340$               1,042$                            618$                               1,273$                             1,340$                        105.2% 1,316$                            3.4% ‐1.8%  Number from finance 

051 Equipment Maintenance
     01  Software
     04  Repairs
     05  Equipment Maintenance 14,661$                      11,602$          7,017$               11,093$                         11,602$                          10,000$                          7,017$                        70.2% 10,000$                          0.0% 42.5%

075 Gas/Oil/Filters
     01  Gas/Oil/Filters 1,991$                        3,541$            2,248$               2,593$                            3,541$                            3,000$                             2,248$                        74.9% 3,000$                            0.0% 33.4%

076 Diesel
     01 Diesel 17,586$                      12,752$          28,093$             19,477$                         12,752$                          22,300$                          28,093$                      126.0% 30,000$                          34.5% 6.8%

148 Trail Maint
     01  Trail Maint 2,509$                        2,409$            1,968$               2,296$                            2,409$                            3,000$                             1,968$                        65.6% 3,000$                            0.0% 52.4%

286 Rent Exp
     01  Rent Exp 2,000$                        2,000$            2,000$               2,000$                            2,000$                            2,000$                             2,000$                        100.0% 2,000$                            0.0% 0.0%
Totals 56,782$                      45,387$          61,749$             54,639$                         45,387$                          62,038$                          61,749$                      99.5% 70,411$                          13.5% 14.0%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

117



2020 2021 2022 2021

Department  Year End   Year End 
 Unaudited Year 

End   Year End   Final Budget   Unaudited Year End 
% Spent of 
Budget  Department Request 

% Change Prior Year 
Budget

% Change Prior Year   
End Comments

96 Section 8 FSS
001‐Salaries
        01‐Regular Pay 36,937$                      38,244$          38,241$             37,808$                         38,244$                          38,429$                          38,241$                      99.5% 43,441$                          13.0% 13.6%  Number from finance 

003‐Office Supplies
        01‐Postage 120$                            37$                  136$                  98$                                 37$                                  100$                                136$                            136.3% 150$                               50.0% 10.0%
        05‐Printer Ink 97$                              201$                161$                  153$                               201$                               175$                                161$                            92.0% 200$                               14.3% 24.2%
        08‐Office Supplies 115$                            222$                275$                  204$                               222$                               75$                                  275$                            366.7% 175$                               133.3% ‐36.4%

009 Professional Dues
     01 Professional Dues 2,079$               ‐$                                 2,079$                       

010‐ Travel Expenses
        01‐Mileage ‐$                            ‐$                               
     02 Meals & Lodging ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                500$                                ‐$                            0.0% 2,000$                            300.0% #DIV/0!
     05 Travel Exp ‐$                            ‐$                 ‐$                   ‐$                                ‐$                                500$                                ‐$                            0.0% 500$                               0.0% #DIV/0!

011 ‐ Training and Education    
        02 ‐ Training and Education ‐$                            ‐$                 912$                  304$                               ‐$                                100$                                912$                            912.0% 1,500$                            1400.0% 64.5%

014 ‐ New Equipment
     01  New Equipment
     02  Office

018‐ Health Insurance
        01‐Health Insurance 2,724$                        2,777$            2,961$               2,821$                            2,777$                            2,823$                             2,961$                        104.9% 2,983$                            5.7% 0.7% Number from finance

021‐Appropriations Allowance
        01‐Appropriation Allowance 7000 5000 13303 8,434$                            5,000$                            5,000$                             13,303$                      266.1% 8,500$                            70.0% ‐36.1%  2023 Grant Award: $64,455 

034‐Workers Comp
        01‐Workers Comp 125$                            109$                109$                  115$                               109$                               119$                                109$                            91.5% 115$                               ‐3.4% 5.6%  Number from finance 

035‐Unemployment
     01‐Unemployment 295$                            323$                324$                  314$                               323$                               315$                                324$                            102.9% 324$                               2.9% 0.0%  Number from finance 

038 Social Security
        01‐Social Security 3,134$                        3,237$            3,252$               3,208$                            3,237$                            2,938$                             3,252$                        110.7% 3,323$                            13.1% 2.2%  Number from finance 

040 City & State Retirement
        01‐Retirement Housing 1,403$                        1,431$            1,437$               1,424$                            1,431$                            1,345$                             1,437$                        106.9% 1,520$                            13.0% 5.8%  Number from finance 

Totals 51,951$                      51,582$          63,191$             55,575$                         51,582$                          52,419$                          63,191$                      120.5% 64,732$                          23.5% 2.4%

 3 Year Average Actual 
Expenses  (20‐22) 

2022 2023

2023 Draft Expense Budget

118



2023 CITY OF CARIBOU

CAPITAL BUDGET

(DRAFT)
Department Project Requested Recommended Budget Line

Airport Tank project $75,000 $75,000 G 1‐372‐01

Airport Apron project $25,000 $25,000 G 1‐372‐01

Code  2024 Comp Plan $32,000 $20,000 G 1‐373‐02

Code  CRRC Riverfront Plan $40,000 $0 G 1‐360‐02

Debt Bio‐Mas Boiler Payment $117,100 $117,100 G 1‐373‐05

Debt Loan Repayment $173,500 $173,500 G 1‐373‐50

Gen Govt DOT VPI $50,000 $50,000

Gen Govt Vital Records $2,500 $2,500 G 1‐373‐04

Gen Govt Voting Booth $950 $950

Library General + Step Repair $22,600 $52,600 G 1‐366‐01

Nylander Building Imp $20,000 $20,000 G 1‐352‐00

Police Station $100,000 $100,000 G 1‐367‐09

Police Police Recruiting $54,000 $54,000 G 1‐367‐10

Police Tasers X 3 $4,800 $4,800 G 1‐367‐02

Police Bulletproof Vests $3,000 $3,000 G 1‐367‐02

Police 1/3 gun replacement $5,000 $5,000 G 1‐367‐02

Police Vehicle replacement $53,000 $53,000 G 1‐367‐03

Police Radio w/ repeater X 2               APPLIED FOR COUNTY ARPA $6,330 $3,000 G 1‐367‐02

Police Camera System                            APPLIED FOR COUNTY ARPA $71,348 $35,000 G 1‐367‐02

Public Works Equip Res T‐6 2004 $155,000 $155,000 G 1‐370‐03

Public Works Pickup $7,500 $7,500 G 1‐370‐03

Public Works Street Reserve $175,000 $175,000 G 1‐370‐04

Public Works Curbing Reserve $5,000 $35,000 G 1‐370‐05

Public Works Building Reserve $13,000 $13,000 G 1‐370‐07

Public Works Parking Lots $40,000 $10,000 G 1‐399‐01

Rec & Parks Caribou Mill Pond $10,000 $10,000 G 1‐365‐13

Rec & Parks General Rec Center Imp $10,000 $10,000 G 1‐365‐02

Rec & Parks Board Walk Repairs $5,000 $0 G 1‐365‐05

Rec & Parks Equipment Reserve $5,000 $5,000 G 1‐365‐09

Rec & Parks Van Reserve $5,000 $5,000 G 1‐365‐17

Rec & Parks Bulletin Board $8,000 $0 G 1‐365‐25

Rec & Parks Park Vehicle Reserve $5,000 $5,000 G 1‐365‐27

Fire / Amb Foam Replacement $4,000 $4,000 G 1‐368‐00

Fire/Amb Replace # 5 Fleet Vehicle $40,000 $0

Fire/Amb Ambulance remount in 2025 ($200,00 total) $125,000 $0

Fire/Amb 1/2 replacement amb # 22 $150,000 $0

Fire/Amb Replace amb monitors/stretchers in 2024 $252,000 $126,000 G 1‐369‐01

Fire/Amb 1/9 allocation towards ladder trk (2027) $200,000 $0

Fire/Amb Remainder of radio replacement       APPLIED FOR ARPA $15,000 $0

Fire/Amb Replace portion of Turnout gear         APPLIED FOR ARPA $40,000 $0

Fire / Amb Van instead of ambulance (money also reserved in 2022) $0 $50,000 G 1‐369‐03

Fire / Amb Women's quarters $280,000 $0

Fire / Amb Lion's Building to offices $450,000 $0

Fire / Amb Public restroom $45,000 $0

Fire / Amb Turnout Gear Locker Room $250,000 $0

Fire / Amb Flooring & carpeting $69,825 $0

Fire / Amb Remove Asbestos $25,000 $0

Fire / Amb Water Infiltration $14,500 $0

Fire / Amb Mechanical design and installation $652,000 $0

Fire / Amb Electrical Upgrades $74,000 $0

Fire / Amb Last year reserves still not spent on projects $0

Requested Recommended

$3,985,953 $1,404,950

119



Department Fund 2020 2021 2022

 3 yr Avg 

(2020‐22)  2023

GENERAL FUNDS
01 ‐ TAX LIEN COSTS COLLECTED 22,279$           14,219$             14,746$             17,081$             14,000$            

02 ‐  DELINQ. TAX INTEREST 78,119$           51,514$             41,676$             57,103$             40,000$            

03 ‐ SUPPLEMENTAL TAX ‐$                 1,245$                15,760$             5,668$              

04 ‐ PYMTS IN LIEU OF TAX 46,267$           29,572$             94,210$             56,683$             50,000$            

05 ‐ CITY OWNED PROPERTY 68,925$           11,940$             31,397$             37,421$             15,000$            

06 ‐ EXCISE TAX 1,504,248$     1,620,984$        1,570,257$        1,565,163$       1,525,000$       

07 ‐ BOAT EXCISE TAX 4,583$             4,825$                4,445$                4,618$               4,500$               

08 ‐ BOAT REG FEE (LOCAL) 388$                519$                   412$                   440$                   500$                  

09 ‐ SNOWMOBILE REGISTRATION  603$                618$                   556$                   592$                   600$                  

10 ‐ ATV REGISTRATION LOCAL FEE 754$                863$                   745$                   787$                   800$                  

11 ‐ Aircraft Excise 291$                ‐$                    146$                  

12 ‐ Travel Reimbursement 279$                150$                   ‐$                    143$                   ‐$                   

13 ‐ Election Reimbursement 5,000$             5,000$              

15 ‐ MISC. LICENSES 1,840$             1,890$                2,020$                1,917$               1,850$               

16 ‐ VEHICLE REGISTRATION 24,890$           27,520$             27,586$             26,665$             26,000$            

17 ‐ 60 ACCESS HIGHWAY ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

18 ‐ STATE REVENUE SHARING 1,095,039$     1,642,901$        2,105,415$        1,614,452$       1,950,000$       

19 ‐ CONNOR EXCISE FEE 1,800$             1,652$                1,777$                1,743$               1,650$               

21 ‐ BIRTH RECORDS 5,909$             7,501$                6,880$                6,763$               7,000$               

22 ‐ DEATH RECORDS 7,944$             8,202$                8,846$                8,331$               8,000$               

23 ‐ MARRIAGE RECORDS 3,450$             4,625$                3,648$                3,908$               4,000$               

25 ‐ DOG LICENSES 1,758$             120$                   942$                   940$                   1,000$               

26 ‐ FISHING LICENSES 296$                446$                   342$                   361$                   400$                  

28 ‐ CABLE TV FRANCHISE 106,017$        109,007$           103,981$           106,335$           100,000$          

29 ‐ MISC. INTEREST 35,986$           16,351$             28,602$             26,979$             49,000$            

30 ‐ MISC. INCOME 6,063$             3,971$                6,813$                5,616$               4,000$               

32 ‐ PROPERTY TAXES 3,355,672$     3,347,344$        3,615,848$        3,439,621$       3,615,900$       

34 ‐ PROPERTY TAX OVERLAY ‐$                 194,791$           1,572$                65,454$             ‐$                   

40 ‐ HOUSING P/Y RECONCILIATION 2,648$             4,984$                3,816$               5,000$               

41 ‐ CDC REVOLOVING LOAN INT ‐$                 ‐$                   

42 ‐ CDC LOAN IRP INTEREST  1,200$             1,079$                953$                   1,077$               1,000$               

43 ‐ DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS ‐$                 ‐$                   

44 ‐ RSU Payment ‐$                 ‐$                   

47 ‐ HUNTING LICENSES 485$                546$                   472$                   501$                   500$                  

51 ‐ Contracted Fees Elections 5,746$             3,032$                2,791$                3,856$               3,000$               

52 ‐ Investment Interest 75,596$           27,517$             23,206$             42,106$             25,000$            

53 ‐ Transfer In

Totals 6,462,875$     7,134,943$       7,720,883$       7,111,288$       7,453,700$      

01 ‐ Nylander Museum 651$                ‐$                    1$                       217$                   ‐$                   

03 ‐ Nylander Museum Rentals ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

Totals 651$                ‐$                    ‐$                    217$                   ‐$                   

01 ‐ Tri‐Community Dividends  ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

Totals ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

01  EOC Rentals 4,000$             2,000$                ‐$                    2,000$               2,000$               

Totals 4,000$             2,000$               ‐$                    2,000$               2,000$              

01 ‐ Connor Administration Fees 5,175$             5,512$                4,800$                5,162$               5,100$               

02 ‐ State Reimbursement 15,018$           5,916$                5,838$                8,924$               14,100$            

Totals 20,193$           11,428$             10,638$             14,086$             19,200$            

01 ‐ TREE GROWTH REIMBURSEMENT 4,057$             4,851$                5,533$                4,814$               5,000$               

02 ‐ VETERANS EXEMPTION REIMB 13,846$           12,881$             13,115$             13,281$             12,800$            

04 ‐ HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION REIMB 684,071$        830,845$           835,682$           783,533$           830,000$          

05 ‐ BETE REIMBURSEMENT 167,937$        185,288$           177,198$           176,808$           175,000$          

06 ‐ Printing Fees ‐$                 341$                   ‐$                    114$                   ‐$                   

07 ‐ Renewable Energy Credit Reimb 16,574$             15,039$             15,807$             15,000$            

Totals 869,911$        1,050,780$       1,046,567$       994,355$           1,037,800$      

10 General Government

12 Nylander Museum

17 Health & Sanitation

18 Municipal Buildings

20 General Assistance

22 Tax Assesment

120



Department Fund 2020 2021 2022

 3 yr Avg 

(2020‐22)  2023

01 ‐ ELECTRICAL PERMITS

02 ‐ BUILDING PERMITS LOCAL FEE 3,000$             3,850$                2,700$                3,183$               2,700$               

03 ‐ PLUMBING PERMITS LOCAL FEE 4,675$             5,403$                2,115$                4,064$               2,100$               

06 ‐ ZONE AMENDMENT FEES 230$                300$                   ‐$                    177$                   200$                  

07 ‐ SITE DESIGN REVIEW APP FEES 900$                630$                   1,260$                930$                   600$                  

10 ‐ DEMO PERMIT FEES ‐$                 ‐$                   

11 ‐ SIGN PERMITS 300$                550$                   800$                   550$                   400$                  

12 ‐ SUBDIVISION REVIEW ‐$                   

13 ‐ MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 25$                     ‐$                    13$                     ‐$                   

14 ‐ Heating Permits ‐$                   

15 ‐ LDA Inspection Service ‐$                   

16 ‐ Woodland Services ‐$                   

Totals 9,105$             10,758$             6,875$               8,917$               6,000$              

24 Housing (see enterprise accounts) ‐$                 ‐$                   

Totals

01 Miscellaneous Income 2,970$             3,330$                2,294$                2,865$               3,000$               

02 Non‐Resident Fees  1,018$             1,726$                1,603$                1,449$               2,000$               

03 Passport Services ‐$                   

Totals 3,988$             5,056$               3,896$               4,313$               5,000$              

01 ‐ MAINECARE 270,237$        331,000$           270,095$           290,444$           332,000$          

02 ‐ MAINECARE AIR AMBULANCE ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

03 ‐ MaineCare Contractual Allowance (94,192)$         ‐$                    (77,443)$            (57,212)$            (77,442)$           

04 ‐ MEDICARE 594,968$        406,199$           671,194$           557,454$           406,200$          

05 ‐ MEDICARE AIR AMBULANCE ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

06 ‐ MediCare Contractual Allowance (198,985)$       ‐$                    (113,431)$          (104,139)$         (113,432)$         

07 ‐ PRIVATE INSURANCE 387,439$        460,463$           254,629$           367,510$           460,462$          

08 ‐ PRIVATE INS AIR AMBULANCE ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

09 ‐ Contractual Allowance ‐ Private (9,877)$            ‐$                    (3,175)$              (4,351)$              (3,175)$             

10 ‐ SELF PAY  143,733$        105,815$           108,213$           119,254$           105,815$          

11 ‐ SELF PAY AIR AMBULANCE ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

12 ‐ Dis Contract ‐ Self Pay ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

13 ‐ VA Air  ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

14 ‐ VA Land ‐$                 ‐$                    1,080$                360$                  

15 ‐ Contractual Allow ‐ VA (1,760)$            ‐$                    (4,244)$              (2,001)$             

16 ‐ Contractual Allow ‐ Other ‐$                 ‐$                    (4,255)$              (1,418)$             

XX ‐ CARIBOU PER CAPITA FEE ‐$                    ‐$                   

20 ‐ WASHBURN PER CAPITA FEE ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

21 ‐ WOODLAND PER CAPITA FEE 103,100$        114,300$           121,700$           113,033$           121,700$          

22 ‐ NEW SWEDEN PER CAPITA FEE 59,300$           56,900$             57,700$             57,967$             57,700$            

23 ‐ WESTMANLAND PER CAPITA FEE 7,900$             5,700$                7,900$                7,167$               7,900$               

24 ‐ STOCKHOLM PER CAPITA FEE 24,600$           23,200$             25,000$             24,267$             25,000$            

25 ‐ CONNOR PER CAPITA FEE 41,500$           $42,400 45,700$             43,200$             45,700$            

26 ‐ PERHAM PER CAPITA FEE ‐$                 0 ‐$                   

27 ‐ MADAWASKA LAKE  PER CAPITA 14,200$           $14,200.00 14,200$             14,200$             14,200$            

28 ‐ LORING DEV PER CAPITA FEE ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

29 ‐ WADE PER CAPITA FEE ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

30 ‐ NON‐CONTRACTED TOWNS FEES 4,000$             2,500$                10,000$             5,500$              

35 ‐ MISC. INTEREST 241$                ‐$                    119$                   120$                  

36 ‐ RECOVERY OF BAD DEBT 1,116$             980$                   2,505$                1,534$              

37 ‐ Ambulance Insurance Reports 167$                ‐$                    64$                     77$                    

38 ‐ LIMESTONE PER CAPITA FEE 203,600$        217,300$           152,600$           191,167$           152,600$          

39 ‐ CASWELL PER CAPITA FEE 24,100$           28,200$             29,300$             27,200$             29,300$            

40 ‐ AMB BILLING HOULTON 16,570$           26$                     8,298$              

41 ‐ AMB BILLING CALAIS 23,918$           29,332$             25,970$             26,407$             ‐$                   

42 ‐ AMB BILLING VAN BUREN ‐$                 0 ‐$                   

43 ‐ AMB BILLING ISLAND FALLS 1,985$             2,019$                2,773$                2,259$               ‐$                   

23 Code Enforcement

25 Library

31 Fire & Ambulance

121



Fund 2020 2021 2022

 3 yr Avg 

(2020‐22)  2023

44 ‐ AMB BILLING PATTEN 7,928$             7,787$                4,335$                6,683$               ‐$                   

50 ‐ FIRE PROTECTION CONNOR 10,375$           10,600$             11,425$             10,800$             11,425$            

51 ‐ FIRE PROTECTION NEW SWEDEN 14,825$           14,225$             14,425$             14,492$             14,425$            

52 ‐ FIRE PROTECTION WESTMANLAND ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

53 ‐ FIRE PROTECTION WOODLAND 25,775$           28,575$             30,425$             28,258$             30,425$            

54 ‐ T16 R4 ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                   

60 ‐ Fire Insurance Reports 70$                   40$                     20$                     43$                     40$                    

61 ‐ Fire Insurance Recovery ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

62 ‐ Fire Permits 4,846$             5,279$                ‐$                    3,375$               ‐$                   

63 ‐ Misc Income 360$                73$                     66$                     166$                   70$                    

Totals 1,682,039$     1,909,135$       1,660,913$       1,752,114$       1,620,913$      

01 ‐ MISC. FEES INSURANCE REPORTS 1,443$             1,687$                1,253$                1,461$               1,500$               

02 ‐ POLICE DISPATCHING 2,000$             500$                   3,500$                2,000$               2,000$               

03 ‐ FINGERPRINTING FEES 9$                     9$                        39$                     19$                     20$                    

04 ‐ CONCEALED WEAPON PERMITS 410$                335$                   340$                   362$                   370$                  

05 ‐ COPS GRANT REIMBURSEMENT ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                    41,667$            

06 ‐ Prisoner Boarding Reimbursement  2,888$             2,040$                4,380$                3,103$               3,500$               

07 ‐ Dog Violation 644$                421$                   382$                   482$                   490$                  

08 ‐ Prisoner Meals 1,272$             928$                   2,360$                1,520$               2,000$               

09 ‐ Court Reimbursement 948$                22$                     552$                   507$                   500$                  

10 ‐ Lamination Fees 187$                130$                   195$                   171$                   180$                  

11 ‐ Misc Fees  509$                95$                     248$                   284$                   300$                  

12 ‐ False Alarm Fees ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                    250$                  

13 ‐ Fines ‐$                 ‐$                   

14 ‐ Salary Reimbursement 9,298$             13,516$             14,688$             12,501$             13,000$            

15 ‐Contract Inc ‐$                 ‐$                   

16 ‐ School Resource Officer 65,747$           24,479$             39,398$             43,208$            

Totals 85,355$           44,162$             67,335$             65,617$             65,777$            

01 ‐Fees Woodland 200$                200$                   200$                   200$                   200$                  

02 ‐ Fees New Sweden 200$                200$                   200$                   200$                   200$                  

03 ‐ Fees Westmandland ‐$                 ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                    ‐$                   

04 ‐ Fees Perham 200$                200$                   200$                   200$                   200$                  

05 ‐ State EOC Reimbursment ‐$                    ‐$                   

06 ‐ Tower Rent ‐$                 1,800$                1,800$                1,200$               1,800$               

Totals 600$                2,400$               2,400$               1,800$               2,400$              

01 ‐ URIP/LRAP 134,728$        135,156$           134,416$           134,767$           135,000$          

03 ‐ Salary Reimbursement 273$                   284$                   279$                   ‐$                   

04 ‐ Equipment Rental ‐$                   

05 ‐ FEMA Reimbursement ‐$                   

06 ‐ Brush Removal Permit Fees ‐$                   

07 ‐ Connor Contract 62,748$           42,523$             88,258$             64,510$             67,667$            

08 ‐ Presque Isle Contract ‐$                   

09 ‐ School Dept Snow Plowing ‐$                   

Totals 197,476$        177,953$           222,958$           199,555$           202,667$          

01 Rental Income 4,197$             4,393$                13,486$             7,359$               12,000$            

02 Program Fees 1,305$             2,900$                3,558$                2,588$               3,500$               

03 Special Events 25$                   100$                   ‐$                    42$                     100$                  

04  Swimming Pool Fees ‐$                   

05 Rec Program Fees ‐$                   

Totals 5,527$             7,393$               17,044$             9,988$               15,600$            

01 Miscellaneous Income 39$                   164$                   ‐$                    68$                     150$                  

02 Rental Income  ‐$                 150$                   50$                     67$                     150$                  

Totals 39$                   314$                   50$                     134$                   300$                  

Fire Department (continued)

40 Public Works

35 Police

39 Emergency Management

50 Recreation

51 Parks

122



Fund 2020 2021 2022

 3 yr Avg 

(2020‐22)  2023

02 ‐ AIRPORT RENT 24,619$           23,349$             19,673$             22,547$             20,000$            

03 ‐ FUEL REVENUE 21,183$           19,300$             37,569$             26,017$             28,000$            

30 ‐ MISC INCOME 600$                   300$                   450$                   ‐$                   

Totals 45,802$           43,249$             57,543$             49,014$             48,000$            

01 ‐ Lot Rent Receipts  14,078$           8,760$                4,215$                9,018$               3,000$               

02 ‐ Year End Close (4,215)$             

Totals 14,078$           8,760$               ‐$                    9,018$               ‐$                   

01 ‐ MMA WORKERS COMP REFUND 10,430$           28,415$             12,606$             17,150$             9,000$               

04 ‐ HRA Credit ‐$                   

Totals 10,430$           28,415$             12,606$             17,150$             9,000$              

9,412,069$     10,436,745$     10,829,708$     9,627,628$       10,488,357$    

  

01 ‐ TIF Dollars Received 302,421$        316,207$           315,378$           311,335$           315,000$          

02 ‐ Comm Project ‐ New Events ‐$                   

Interest ‐$                   

Totals 302,421$        316,207$           315,378$           311,335$           315,000$          

01 ‐ Section 8 Administration 64,167$           70,000$             65,736$             66,634$             97,848$            

02 ‐ Expense Reimbursement 32,394$           44,098$             41,946$             39,479$             44,946$            

Totals 96,561$           114,098$           107,683$           106,114$           142,794$          

01 ‐ Miscellaneous Income 7,600$             7,100$                4,500$                6,400$               5,000$               

02 ‐ State Grant 50,716$           45,979$             20,266$             38,987$             67,200$            

03 ‐ Snow Sled Reg (State) 50$                   212$                   65$                     109$                   150$                  

04 ‐ Year End Close ‐$                   

Totals 7,650$             53,291$             24,830$             45,496$             72,350$            

01‐FSS Reimbursement 47,872$           57,446$             63,191$             56,170$             64,455$            

02 ‐ From/To Reserve ‐$                   

Totals 47,872$           57,446$             63,191$             56,170$             64,455$            

454,504$        541,041$           511,082$           502,209$           594,599$          

TOTAL ALL FUNDS
9,866,573$     10,977,786$     11,340,790$     10,728,383$     11,082,956$    

 Sub‐Total 

60 Airport

61 Trailer Park

70 Insurance & Retirement

 Sub‐Total 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
11 Economic Development

24 Housing

52 Snowmobile Trails

96 FSS Revenues

123



2023 THE BOTTOM LINE

GENERAL FUNDS

EXPENSE BUDGET $10,540,122
CAPITAL $1,404,950
TOTAL $11,945,072.00

REVENUE $10,488,357.00

ADDITIONAL TO BE RAISED: ‐$1,456,715.00 (EXPENSE & CAPITAL BUDGET MINUS REVENUE BUDGET)

2021 LAPSED APPROPRIATION $361,557.69 (FROM FINANCE DIRECTOR EMAIL 3/08/2023)
2022 TAX RELIEF FUND (REVENUE SHARING)  $505,415.09

SUB‐TOTAL: ‐$589,742.22 (ADDITIONAL TO BE RAISED MINUS USE OF FUNDS)

ADDITIONAL MILS FOR CITY BUDGET 1.66 (BUDGET INCREASE DIVIDED BY VALUE OF 2022 MIL)
2022 MIL = $356,136.00

COUNTY BUDGET INCREASE $72,386.38

ADDITIONAL MILS FOR COUNTY BUDGET 0.20 (BUDGET INCREASE DIVIDED BY VALUE OF 2022 MIL)
2022 MIL = $356,136.00

RESULTS IN A MIL RATE INCREASE OF: 1.86
?????? POTENTIAL INCREASE FOR SCHOOL (UNKNOWN ‐ JUST STARTED PROCESS)

2022 MIL RATE WAS: 23.55

CURRENT ESTIMATE FOR 2023 TAX RATE 25.41

124


